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Aiding fiscal 2007 sales was an order for additional Active Fuel
Injector Testers (AFIT) for equipping additional GM dealerships with
the product. In addition, we have been working with GM engineers to
develop an accessory for the AFIT that will enable the tester to test
Diesel engine fuel injectors. Although the original development was
targeted at the GM Duramax engines sold in North America, GM of
Europe recently expressed interest in the development. In Europe
Diesel engine vehicles are more than 50% of the vehicles on the road
and GM has about 7,000 dealerships. For the past two years OEM
business has contributed significantly to revenue. It is a business we
have proven we can compete in effectively and we intend to devote
significant resources to pursue this type of business as we go
forward. Our investors must, however, recognize that the OEM
business is a “big deal” business and can result in substantial
fluctuations in revenues and profits,

OEM requirements are specific to their vehicles and systems, but
usually there are similarities among the vehicles of all the OEM’s. By
being selective in the projects we undertake, we can focus our
development efforts on tools that can, with reasonable additional
investment, be expanded to cover multiple manufacturers' car lines,
The intent is to create products using the developments we have
made for OEMs that with modifications can also have a viable market
with aftermarket servicers. As an example, AFIT for GM is currently
being expanded to cover most manufacturers’ vehicles and will be
introduced late third quarter 2008. The Diesel accessory mentioned
above will also have multiple manufacturer application,

There are a number of new innovations in vehicles such as hybrid and
diesel power trains that are projected to become important segments
of the North American vehicle fleet. These vehicles offer a major
opportunity for new and innovative tools to aid in their diagnosis and
service. The Company is actively researching the opportunities in this
area even though it may be several years until these vehicles becoma
important to aftermarket servicers. OEMs and their dealers have
needs for such tools now and, eventually, that need will filtter to the
aftermarket. We have several ideas we are researching and hope to
commit to full product development programs in the near future,

Indicators remain an important part of our business although the
opportunity for substantial growth is limited. The product-line has
recovered from the depressed levels of 2000 and 2001. Afthough
sales in fiscal 2007 were slightly lower than in fiscal 2006 | believe the
decline was primarily due to order timing and as a result, we
anticipate that 2008 revenues should grow slightly over 2007. The
Digilog product continues to grow as an element of the Indicator
business with several new customers expressing Interest. This is
significant because the Digilog product commands better margins
than do some of the Company’s older indicator products.

Fiscal 2007 was a year of uncertainty for the Company. The final
commitment by the State of California to go forward with the
emissions testing program wasn't made until August. After finally
licensing a key algorithm from Ford in late fiscal 2006 it took most of
the year to develop the software necessary to return NGS to factory
tool performance levels. On a positive note, we developed several
products for the aftermarket that we believe will help re-establish
momentum in this segment of the business. Our acceptance as a
supplier to OEMs for their unique tools needs continued to progress.
We have projects underway that we believe will result in orders and
shipments in fiscal 2008. In combination with the California Program
shipments that have occurred in 2008, the OEM projects under
development and an expectation of getting back on track in the
aftermarket, | am optimistic that 2008 will be a year of growth for the
Company.

The Company is financially healthy. We have a skilled workforce and
modern systems to make them efficient. Over the past couple of
years we have expanded our customer base, and our customers now
include aftermarket servicers, OEMSs', locomotive, aircraft, and
emissions testing customers. We have delivered some rather large
orders to certain of these customers and the products have been well
accepted and have enhanced our reputation. We have projects in
process that we are optimistic will garner further large orders. We
have also invested heavily in new products that we believe will have
strong sales appeal to the broader aftermarket. We are likely to
remain dependent on acquiring some large orders each year to be
profitable, but | believe we have established a broad enough
customer and preduct base to make it likely that such orders can be
written. In the interim, we remain focused on establishing a solid
enough base to reduce the dependence on the large orders and |
believe we will be successful.

Sincerely,

V1 L A

Robert L Bauman
President and CEO
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January 2, 2008

Dear Shareholder:

In late 2007, the long anticipated California Low Pressure Evaporative
Emissions Testing program was made official after many months of
waiting. In order to meet the state deadlines, the Company started
initial unit production and our partner, Environmental Systems
Products (ESP), initiated sales efforts in late June, over a month
before the program became official. As | write this letter, we have
delivered approximately 4,800 units to customers in California and the
program kicked off on December 1, 2007. Because of our late start
due to program delays we were unable to ship enough EVAP units in
fiscal 2007 to at least make the year a breakeven financially, however
our first quarter fiscal 2008 will be outstanding.

Although the California Program is largely behind us we are hopeful
several other states will implement similar programs in the future.
Evaporative emissions testing was shown by a California study to be
one of the most economical ways to improve the environment, meet
EPA clean air requirements, and get highway credits for the state. We
have all read or heard about the connection of CO? to global warrning
and the continued concern about clean air. | believe the national
media’s continuing attention to these issues portends good things for
our Company’s emissions products. Over the next coupte of years,
states plan to implement already announced emissions testing
programs, In light of our prominent role in California's program, we
believe that these new programs will provide additional opportunities
for our products.

In early 2007, we concluded that the California Program would be
implemented soon although timing was still somewhat uncertain. For
a number of years we have believed that growing the aftermarket
automotive business was a priority. Believing that California would
implement its program and that we would capture significant market
share, we decided to add engineering resources for development of
aftermarket products including bringing NGS, whose sales were
declining, back to factory too! performance levels. Qur investment in
these resources resulted in minimal contribution to fiscal 2007’s
bottom line, but is expected to have substantial impact on fiscal
2008.

NGS has been returned to factory tool performance levels and it
appears the sales decline has been halted. We introduced the NGS
PC, a PC based version of the classic NGS, that is also at factory
level scan tool performance. U-Haul International Inc. has already
adopted it as a required tool for their service locations in the United
States. tn addition, we are poised to introduce a series of innovative
new products in fiscal 2008 that we believe will allow us to reclaim the
aftermarket momentum we enjoyed a few years ago. Two new quick
test probes have already been announced. In early February we will
introduce a new too! far determining ¢ircuit faults in vehicle electrical
systems. Later in the year we will introduce a system for controlling
and documenting bolt torgue on vehicle wheels and a version of our
Active Fuel Injector Tester, developed for GM, that will cover multiple
manufacturers’ vehicles.
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PART |

ITEM 1. DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS

General Development of Business

Hickok Incorporated was organized in 1915 as an Ohio corporation, and first offered its securities to the public in
1959. Except as otherwise stated, the terms "Company” or "Hickok" as used herein mean Hickok Incorporated
and its two wholly-owned subsidiaries, Supreme Electronics Corp. and Waekon Corporation. Hickok develops
and manufactures products used by companies in the transportation industry. Primary markets served are
automotive, emissions testing, aircraft, and locomotive with sales both to original equipment manufacturers
(OEM's) and to the automotive aftermarket.

Until the mid 1980's Hickok was known primarily for its ability to develop and manufacture electronic instruments
for electronic servicers, precision indicating instruments for aircraft, locomotive, and industrial applications, and
electronic teaching systems for vocational schools. Since the mid 1980's the Company has focused this
expertise to develop and manufacture electronic diagnostic tools and equipment used by automotive technicians
in the automotive market. This is now the Company's largest business segment. The Company continues to
design and manufacture precision indicating instruments. This segment represents approximately 15% of the
Company's current revenus.

In the early 1990's the Company had become dependent on a few large OEM customers for the majority of its
business. After recognizing this dependency the Company tried several approaches to expand both its customer
base and its product lines utilizing its existing expertise and acquisitions with modest success. The Company
then determined that it was crucial that it expand its automotive business by designing products and opening
sales channels to the automotive aftermarket. In February 1998 the Company added new products and
customers within the automotive aftermarket with the acquisition of Waekon Industries.

In addition to the acquisition of Waekon Industries, the Company embarked on development programs to design
tools specifically tailored to the needs of the automotive aftermarket and develop a variety of sales channels to
the market. Since the acquisition, the Waekon name is used by the Company as a trademark to market its
products to technicians in the automotive aftermarket and for certain emission inspection grade equipment it
manufactures. Also the name Waekon-Hickok is used as a trademark for higher complexity equipment primarily
aimed at automotive service shops as a shop tool. The Hickok brand is used for a family of products that are
related to OEM grade tools sold to automotive dealerships and manufacturers. These efforts have resulted in a
more balanced revenue stream.




Over the past several years the Company has developed a reputation as a quality emissions testing product
provider. Our reputation for innovative emissions testing products began with the Model FPT27 Gas Cap Tester
that has been used in numerous state programs by emissions testing equipment suppliers. In 2004 the
Company developed and marketed a complete emissions testing platform for a State of Pennsylvania program.
From 2002 until 2007 the Company worked with the State of California to develop a patented product for testing
leaks in vehicle evaporative emissions systems. The California program entered the implementation phase on
December 1, 2007. These emissions programs generally result in large short-term revenues for the Company
with some residual benefits to future years.

The Company's operations are currently concentrated in the United States of America. Sales are primarily to
domestic customers although the Company also makes sales to international customers through domestically
based distribution companies. The Company established select market international service center
arrangements during fiscal 1995.

QOperating Segment Information

The Company's operations are combined into two reportable business segments: 1) indicators and gauges and
2) automotive diagnostic tools and equipment. Reference is made to "Segment and Related Information™
included in the notes to the financial statements.

Indicators and Gauges

For over ninety-two years the Company has developed and manufactured precision indicating instruments used
in aircraft, locomotives and other applications. In recent years the Company has specialized in aircraft and
locomotive cockpit instruments. Within the aircraft market, instruments are sold primarily to manufacturers or
servicers of business and pleasure aircraft. Within the locomotive market, indicators are sold to both original
equipment manufacturers and to operators of railroad equipment. Indicators and gauges represented
approximately 15% of the Company's sales for fiscal 2007 and 13% for fiscal 2006. An original grouping of
products, DIGILOG Instruments, were certified with the FAA during fiscal 2002. Subsequently several additional
models have also been certified. The DIGILOG instrument is a customizable indicator that is a combination
analog/digital indicator for the aircraft market. It can be adapted to display a wide variety of aircraft parameters.

Automotive Diagnostic Tools and Equipment

Since the mid 1980's the Company has concentrated on designing and marketing instruments used to diagnose
automotive electronic systems. These products were initially sold to Ford Motor Company but are now sold to
several automotive OEM's, and to the aftermarket using jobbers, wholesalers and mobile distributors. Since the
late 1990's sales of products designed specifically to OEM requirements have been balanced with products
developed for automotive aftermarket servicers and the emissions testing industry. In fiscal 2007 and 2006
orders from a supplier to OEMs for products designed to the OEM's requirements significantly affected
revenues. In fiscal 2007 and 2004 emissions products significantly affected revenues. The aftermarket
accounted for approximately 26% of the Company's automotive diagnostic and specialty tool sales in fiscal 2007
and 29% for fiscal 2006. As a whole, automotive diagnostic tools and equipment represented approximately 85%
of the Company's sales for fiscal 2007 and 87% for fiscal 2006.

The Company has cultivated a reputation for developing innovative tools for automotive diagnostics and uses
that reputation as leverage when it introduces new offerings. Being innovative sometimes adds to the difficulty of
training the sales channels and technician market on the benefits of the product. An example of this is the
On-Car Injector Flow Bench (OCIFB), that the Company introduced several years ago to the aftermarket. Sales
of the product had been slowly increasing as the market began to understand its value. In 2004 a major
automotive OEM became interested in the product's ability to measure the actual flow of fuel injectors on the
vehicle. By enabling the dealership technician to obtain flow information they expected to substantially reduce
their "no trouble found" warranty returns of fuel injectors. A major order for the OEM's dealerships was delivered
in fiscal 2006 and an additional order for additional dealership coverage was delivered in fiscal 2007. The order,
along with a smaller order for another innovative product that the Company has offered since 1999, resulted in
almost $7,100,000 of revenue in 2006 and $3,400,000 in 2007.

New Generation Star (NGS) is an automotive scan tool that was supported by Ford Motor Company as a
primary diagnostic tool for their vehicles since 1992. The Company had considerable success selling the NGS
tool to aftermarket customers starting in 2000. Sales of NGS both to dealerships and aftermarket customers was
a major revenue source for the Company. In 2005 Ford made the decision to no longer support the NGS with
software and introduced a new tool to take its place. The Company decided to undertake a program to develop




its own software for NGS to cover new vehicles as they are introduced primarily for aftermarket customers.
Unfortunately, without access to a proprietary algorithm owned by Ford there are a number of important
functions that could not be implemented on the tool. As a consequence, sales of NGS in the aftermarket have
deteriorated substantially over the past couple years.

In late 2006 the Company was able to license the security algorithm from Ford. By late 2007 the software the
Company has developed has returned the NGS tool to factory developed software level of performance. In
addition the Company has introduced NGS PC. This product is essentially a PC based implementation of the
classic NGS product and it too is at factory level functionality. The Company intends to put major marketing
emphasis on the NGS products during 2008 and believes it can return these products to significant revenue
generators. The Company believes these products also have a significant influence on the ability to sell other
products to aftermarket customers.

The Company has developed a reputation for introducing innovative aftermarket products. New products are
essential for growth in the aftermarket business. Because of the demands on its resources associated with major
OEM and emission projects over the past few years, new product aftermarket rollouts were fewer than in
previous years. Significant resources were devoted in 2007 and will be devoted in 2008 to developing new
aftermarket products. The Company has a number of products well along in development that it intends to
introduce during 2008. While new product introductions were less than in previous years the Company partly
maintained its reputation with the aftermarket sales channels for innovation because of innovative policies,
promotional concepts and field support.

Since reestablishing contacts with OEMs three years ago, the Company has had significant success with
products to these customers. The Active Fue! Injector Tester selected by GM for all their North American
dealers added to both fiscal 2006 and 2007 revenues. It is also expected to add to fiscal 2008 revenues because
of a project currently underway to extend its capabilities to diesel type engines. The Company also has other
programs it is working with for OEM customers that may result in significant revenues in the future. Many of
these products may also have application in the aftermarket. The Company is striking a balance between
assigning resources to the OEM type projects that generally result in large one-time orders and aftermarket
products that generally have longer product life and consistent revenue potential spread over longer time
periods.

Vehicle emissions testing products are used by state inspection programs to determine if vehicles comply with
environmental regulations. The Company developed a gas cap testing preduct in 2000 that has been very
successful and is used by most emissions equipment providers as the gas cap tester in their offerings. Fiscal
2007 fourth quarter and fiscal 2008 first quarter revenue were materially influenced by a product developed for
the State of California to test the fuel system of vehicles for leaks. In California, the Company partnered with
Environmental Systems Products (ESP), a major provider of emissions testing equipment. ESP provided sales
and service to customers and the Company designed and manufactured the product. Both of these products
incorporate patented methods for making the measurements. With the continuing attention to environmental
issues in North America, the Company is optimistic that both products will contribute to future revenues. In
addition, the Company remains sensitive to other needs that may arise to develop products for measuring
emissions related parameters.

Indicator revenues have recovered from the depressed levels of 2002 and 2003 that were due to economic
conditions in the business aircraft and locomotive markets. Although the Company does not view this segment
as a high growth potential, it does contribute significant revenues and margins. Over the past couple of years the
market appears {0 have flattened and year 1o year variation of revenue is more dependent on customer timing
than any general market direction. Digilog, a higher margin product developed several years ago, continues to
grow modestly in importance to the product segment.

Sources and Availability of Raw Materials

Raw materials essential to the business are acquired from a large number of United States of America
manufacturers and some materials are now purchased from European and Southeast Asian sources. Materials
acquired from the electronic components industry include transistors, integrated circuits, resistors, capacitors,
switches, potentiometers, micro controllers, and other passive parts. Fabricated metal or plastic parts are
generally purchased from local suppliers or manufactured by the Company fram raw materials. In general, the
required materials are available, if ordered with sufficient lead times, from multiple sources at current prices.




Importance of Patents, Licenses, Franchises, Trademarks and Concessions

The Company presently has several patents and patent applications that relate to several of its products. The
Company believes that its position in the industry is dependent upon its present level of engineering skill,
research, sales relationships, production techniques and service. However, the Company does have several
basic methodology patents related to products it offers that it considers very important to future revenue. The
Company has three important patents, one related to vehicle fuel cap testing that expires in 2018 and a second
patent related to gasoline fuel injector testing expiring in 2008. The most important patent is related to the testing
of evaporative emissions systems that is the basis for the Company's product offering for the State of California.
This patent expires in the year 2022. The Company monitors the marketplace for infringement of its patents and
intends to pursue its rights should an infringement take place. Other than the names "Hickok” and "Waekon", the
Company does not have any material licenses, trademarks, franchises or concessions.

Seasonality

The Company believes that there is a seasonality to the automotive aftermarket revenues. Typically the first and
fourth quarters tend to be weaker than the other two quarters in this market. Orders for OEM or emissions
testing products are primarily subject to customer timing requirements and have no known seasonality aspect to
them. As a result, operating results can fluctuate widely from quarter to quarter and year to year. During fiscal
2007 the California evaporative emissions systems program substantially affected the fourth quarter results.
During fiscal 2006 two significant OEM programs muted the seasonality of the first quarter and added to the third
and fourth quarter results. The California evaporative emissionssystems program will also have a significant
affect on the Company’s first quarter results of fiscal 2008.

Practices Relative to Working Capital items

The nature of the Company's business requires it to maintain sufficient levels of inventory to meet rapid delivery
requirements of customers. The Company provides its customers with payment terms prevalent in the industry.

Dependence on Single or Few Customers

Sales to ESP amounted to approximately 29% and sales to General Motors Corporation also accounted for
approximately 29% of the consolidated sales of the Company during fiscal 2007. During the fiscal year ended
September 30, 2006, sales to Ford and General Motors Corporation accounted for approximately 9% and 48%
respectively of the consaolidated sales of the Company. This compares with 11% and 6% respectively during the
prior fiscal year. The Company has no long-term contractual relationships with either Ford or General Motors.
Several aftermarket distribution companies and several equipment CEM's have become a significant source of
revenue. Sales in fiscal 2007 to ESP amounted to approximately $3,620,000 and sales to General Motors
Corporation amounted to approximately $3,683,000. Sales to General Motors Corporation amounted to
approximately $7,100,000 or 45% of the consolidated sales of the Company for fiscal 2006 compared to
approximately $211,000 or 2% for fiscal 2005. The Company does not feel that it is dependent on any one
customer but it is dependent on sales to this class of customers.

Backlog

At September 30, 2007, the unshipped customer order backlog totaled $5,756,000 compared to $1,621,000 at
September 30, 2006 and $3,047,000 at September 30, 2005. The increase in fiscal 2007 is primarily due to
increased orders in automotive diagnostic products of $4,118,000, specifically, $4,974,000 for emissions
products, offset in part by decreases in automotive diagnostic products to OEM's of $830,000 and $26,000 for
non-emission aftermarket products. Also contributing to the backlog increase was $24,000 for indicators and
gauges. The Company expects to ship essentially the entire backlog in fiscal 2008. The decrease in fiscal 2006
versus 2005 is primarily due to decreased orders for automotive diagnostic products to OEM's and the
aftermarket of $1,016,000 and $133,000 respectively. Also contributing to the backlog decrease in 2006 was
$72,000 for indicators and gauges, $135,000 for emission products and $68,000 for fastening systems products.

Government Contract Renegotiation

No major portion of the business is apen to renegaotiation of profits or termination of contracts or subcontracts at
the election of the Government. The amount of revenue derived from Government contracts is currently minimal

and not material.



Competitive Conditions

The Company is engaged in a highly competitive industry and faces competition from domestic and international
firms. Several of the Company's competitors have greater financial resources and larger sales organizations
than the Company. Competition with respect to the Company's diagnostic tool business arises from the
existence of a number of other significant manufacturers in the field, such as Snap-On, SPX Corporation,
Teradyne, and Vetronix which dominate the available market in terms of total sales. The instrumentation industry
is composed primarily of companies that specialize in the production of particular items as compared to a full line
of instruments. The Company believes that its competitive position in this field is in the area of smaller,
specialized products, an area in which the Company has operated since 1915 and in which the Company has
established itself competitively by offering high-quality, high-performance products in comparison to
high-volume, mass-produced items.

Research and Development Activities

The Company expensed as incurred product development costs of $2,020,312 in 2007, $1,840,182 in 2006 and
$2,059,401 in 2005. These expenditures included engineering product support and development of manuals for

both of the Company's business segments.

Compliance with Environmental Provisions

The Company's capital expenditures, earnings and competitive position are not materially affected by
compliance with federal, state and local environmental provisions which have been enacted or adopted to
regulate the distribution of materials into the environment.

Number of Persons Employed

Total employment by the Company at September 30, 2007 was 160 full-time employees. The Company has no
part-time employees. None of the employees are represented by a union. The Company considers its relations

with its employees to be good.

Financial Information Concerning Foreign and Domestic Operations and Export Sales

During the fiscal year ended September 30, 2007, all manufacturing, research and development and
administrative operations were conducted in the United States of America. Revenues derived from export sales
approximated $274,000 in 2007, $1,359,000 in 2006, and $322,000 in 2005. Shipments to Australia, Canada
and Germany make up the majority of export sales.




ITEM 2. DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY

As of December 7, 2007 the Company had facilities in the United States of America as shown below:

LOCATION SIZE DESCRIPTION OWNED OR LEASED

Cleveland, Ohio 37,000 Sq. Ft. Two-story brick Owned
construction; used for
corporate administrative
headquarters, marketing
and product development
with limited manufacturing.

Greenwood, 63,000 Sq. Ft. One-story modern concrete Leased, with annual renewal
Mississippi block construction; used for options extending through 2061.
manufacturing instruments,
test equipment, and
fastening systems
products,

The Company believes its plants and offices are in satisfactory operating condition, well maintained, adequate
for the uses to which they are put and are adeqguately insured.

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

The Company is not a party to any material legal proceedings.

ITEM 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS

Not Applicable.

EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE REGISTRANT

The following is a list of the executive officers of the Company as of September 30, 2007. The executive officers
are elected each year and serve at the pleasure of the Board of Directors. Mr. Robert Bauman was elected
Chairman by the Board of Directors in July 1993 and served as chairman until May 2001. He has been President
since 1991 and Chief Executive Officer since 1993. For at least five years prior to 1991 he held the office of Vice
President. The Board of Directors elected Mr. Gregory Zoloty Senior Vice President of Finance and Chief
Financial Officer in February 2004. Mr. Zoloty was Vice President of Finance and Chief Financial Officer since
May 2001. Mr. Zoloty was Vice President of Accounting and Chief Accounting Officer since 1994, He joined the
Company in 1986. Mr. Thomas Bauman was elected Senior Vice President of Sales and Marketing by the Board
of Directors in February 2004. Mr. Thomas Bauman was elected Vice President of Sales and Marketing by the
Board of Directors in May 1999. He joined the Company in April 1998. In 1996 and 1997 he was President and
CEOQ of C&K Manufacturing. Mr. Robert Bauman and Mr, Thomas Bauman are brothers. Mr. William Bruner was
elected Senior Vice President of Manufacturing by the Board of Directors in February 2004. Mr. Bruner was
elected Vice President of Manufacturing in August 1993. He joined the Company in January 1874.




OFFICE OFFICER AGE
President and Chief Executive Officer Robert L. Bauman 67

Senior Vice President, Finance and Chief

Financial Officer Gregory M. Zoloty 55
Senior Vice President, Sales and Marketing  Thomas F. Bauman 64
Senior Vice President, Manufacturing William A. Bruner 65

*The description of Executive Officers called for in this Item is included pursuant to Instruction 3 to Section {b) of
item 401 of Regulation S-K.

PART Il

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR COMMON EQUITY AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND SMALL

BUSINESS ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

a) MARKET INFORMATION

During fiscal 2007 and 2006 our Class A Common Shares were traded on The Nasdaq Over-The-Counter
Bulletin Board Market under the symbol HICKA.OB. There is no market for the Registrant's Class B Common

Shares.

The following table sets forth the per share range of high and low bids (Over-The-Counter Bulletin Board) for the
Registrant's Class A Common Shares for the periods indicated. The Over-The-Counter Bulletin Board prices
reflect inter-dealer prices without retail markup, markdown or commissions and may not represent actual
transactions. Data was supplied by Nasdagq.

PRICES FOR THE YEARS ENDED:

September 30, 2007 September 30, 2006
HIGH LOW HIGH LOW
First Quarter 7.90 575 5.00 3.80
Second Quarter 10.95 7.50 6.75 485
Third Quarter 11.50 10.00 6.50 5.10
Fourth Quarter 16.00 10.50 5.99 5.00

b) HOLDERS

As of December 7, 2007, there were approximately 357 sharsholders of record of the Company's outstanding
Class A Common Shares and 5 holders of record of the Company's cutstanding Class B Common Shares.

c¢) DIVIDENDS

In fiscal 2007 and 2005 the Company paid a special dividend of $.10 per share on its Class A and Class B
Common Shares. In fiscal 2006 the Company paid no dividends on either of its Class A or Class B Common
Shares. Pursuant to the Company's Amended Articles of Incorporation, no dividends may be paid on Class B
Common Shares until cash dividends of ten cents per share per fiscal year are paid on Class A Common
Shares. Any determination to pay cash dividends in the future will be at the discretion of the Board of Directors
after taking into account various factors, including the Company's financial condition, results of operations and
current and anticipated cash needs.




ITEM 6. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OR PLAN OF OPERATION

Introduction

Until the mid 1980's Hickok was known primarily for its ability to develop and manufacture electronic instruments
for electronic servicers, precision indicating instruments for aircraft, locomotive, and industrial applications, and
electronic teaching systems for vocational schools. For the past twenty-one years the Company has used this
expertise to develop and manufacture electronic diagnostic tools and equipment used by automotive technicians
in the automotive service market. This is now the Company's largest business segment. The Company
generated approximately 85% of its fiscal 2007 revenue from designing and manufacturing diagnostic tools for
automotive diagnostics and testing. These tools enable automotive service technicians to identify problems in
electronics systems and other non-electronic systems in automobiles.

Thirteen years ago two large automotive OEM companies comprised over 80% of the company's business. A
substantial portion of this business was contingent on large programs initiated by these OEM's on a year to year
basis. The Company recognized that the OEM's were changing and that the likelihood of the continuation of
these yearly large programs was diminishing. As a result, the Company initiated a strategy to use existing
technical and manufacturing expertise and to develop sales and marketing skills applicable to the automotive
aftermarket service industry. The strategy was aided by the acquisition of Waekon Industries in 1998. The
Company uses Waekon as the brand of its products that are primarily intended as a technician's personal tool.
The acquisition of Waekon immediately gave the Company aftermarket products and access to certain sales
channels to that market.

Since the acquisition of Waekon, the Company has further expanded aftermarket sales channels and added
many new product offerings. Those efforts caused aftermarket revenues to steadily rise and OEM dependence
steadily declined until the past two years.In fiscal 2007, approximately 26% of the Company's automotive
diagnostic tool revenue was from aftermarket customers and 74% was from OEM customers. Aftermarket
revenue declined from approximately $3,900,000 in fiscal 2006 to $2,800,000 in fiscal 2007 largely as a result of
lower sales of the Company's NGS product. In fiscal 2008, approximately 29% of the Company's automotive
diagnostic tool revenue was from aftermarket customers and 71% was from OEM customers. This compares
with 73% from aftermarket customers and 27% from OEM customers in fiscal 2005. Aftermarket revenue
declined from approximately $4,900,000 in fiscal 2005 to $3,900,000 in fiscal 2006. The decline in aftermarket
revenue was largely attributable to diminished sales of the NGS product and lower introductions of new products
to the aftermarket while development resources were devoted to OEM products and a product for a large
emission program in the State of California. Although management plans to continue to pursue QEM and
emissions opportunities, it believes that it must grow the afterrmarket to provide a stable and predictable revenue
base. It plans in the future to devote a greater percentage of development resources to QEM and aftermarket
products.

The Company also offers products for emissions testing programs. Our gas cap testing products have become
the defacto standard of gas cap testing in the United States and most major vendors use our gas cap testers in
their equipment when gas cap testing is specified within a state program. As a result of participation in the
emissions testing market the Company developed an ability to test for leaks in vehicle evaporative systems (gas
tanks) and participated in a New Jersey state emissions testing initiative in 1999 that did not result in significant
sales. California announced a similar initiative in mid 2003. The Company decided to pursue this opportunity and
has since devoted significant resources to the extension of the New Jersey product to meet the California
requirements. It applied for and received a patent on the methodology it developed for New Jersey and uses for
the California product. In fiscal 2004 the Company signed an exclusive supply agreement with Environmental
Services Products (ESP) that is supplying sales, marketing, and service for the tank testing product in the state
of California. During late fiscal 2007 the California emissions program became official and the Company's
product was certified by the State of California. The program resulted in substantial revenues in fiscal 2007 and
management believes most of the Company's backlog for this program will be shipped and allow for positive
operating results in the first quarter of fiscal 2008. Emissions revenue in fiscal 2007 was approximately
$3,900,000, 37% of automotive diagnostic tool revenue compared to $730,000 or 5% of fiscal 2006 diagnostic
tool revenue.

In 2005 Ford Motor Company made the decision to no longer support the Company's NGS product with factory
developed software. The Company decided to devote the resources to develop its own software where Ford left
off and to continue to promote the product to the aftermarket. However, some functions of the vehicle computers
require a security access algorithm. The Company executed a license with Ford and subsequently received the
securily access technical information from Ford in late September 2006. it took most of fiscal 2007 to develop




the software to return the functionality of the NGS product to factory tool levels. In addition, the Company has
introduced a PC based version of the NGS product that achieves approximately the same level of factory level
functionality as the classic NGS product. In addition, the Company is developing, for introduction in mid 2008, a
next generation of the classic NGS product that will maintain the factory leve! performance of the product and
enhance its functionality and appearance. NGS product sales declined significantly in 2006 and 2007 but
management believes with these new introductions the Company can significantly increase NGS sales in fiscal
2008 and should aid sales of other aftermarket products.

The timing of order releases and large program implementations in the Company's automotive diagnostic
equipment business can cause wide fluctuations in the Company's operating results both on a quarter-to-quarter
and a year-to-year basis. Orders for such equipment can be large, are subject to customer schedules, and may
result in substantial variations in quarterly and yearly sales and earnings. As an example, fiscal 2007 compared
to fiscal 2006 is typical of the fluctuations these large programs can cause. The fourth quarter of fiscal 2007
resulted in substantial growth and profitable operations because of the added revenue of the California
emissions program. While fiscal 2006 resulted in substantial revenue growth and profitable operations for the
year because of the added revenue of the OEM orders.

The Company's indicator product revenue decreased 8% in fiscal 2007 and the percentage of total Company
revenues increased from 13% in fiscal 2006 to 15% in 2007 largely as a result of customer delivery requirement
timing. The indicator percentage increase in total Company revenues was primarily a result of decreased total
sales in fiscal 2007. In fiscal 2006 indicator product revenue increased 8% and the percentage of total Company
revenues decreased to 13% from 19% in 2005. The indicator percentage decrease in total Company revenues
was primarily a result of increased sales of automotive diagnostic products. The Company anticipates indicator
sales will continue at current levels in fiscal 2008 and into the foreseeable future. The Company's Digilog
products have added new customers to this segment that the Company anticipates will continue to grow in
importance to indicator revenues and margins. Management feels that resources dedicated to this segment are
adequate at the present time.

Looking forward, the introduction of new automotive diagnostic products to the aftermarket on a regular basis is
very important for the growth of the business segment. Expenditures for product development have been and will
continue to be significant to the Company's operations. Because of the large sales opportunities the Company is
simultaneously addressing, development resources are stretched. Management took steps to add resources to
support new product development needs in fiscal 2007 and expects expenditures for product development to
continue at current levels in fiscal 2008. Marketing and Sales are also a significant expense. As revenue grows,
certain variable sales and marketing expenses such as commissions also grow. With the expected increase in
aftermarket revenues for fiscal 2008 and the need for promotional and other marketing related activities,
management expects marketing and sales expenses to increase modestly in fiscat 2008.

The Company's order backlog as of September 30, 2007 totaled $5,756,000 as compared to $1,621,000 as of
September 30, 2006 and $3,047,000 as of September 30, 2005. The increase in fiscal 2007 is primarily due to
increased orders in automotive diagnostic products of $4,118,000, specifically, $4,974,000 for emissions
products, offset in part by decreases in automotive diagnostic products to OEM's of $830,000 and $26,000 for
non-emission aftermarket products. Also contributing to the backlog increase was $24,000 for indicators and
gauges. The Company estimates that approximately 90% of the backlog at September 30, 2007 will be shipped
in the first quarter of fiscal 2008. The decrease in fiscal 2008 versus 2005 is primarily due to decreased orders
for automotive diagnostic products to OEM's and the aftermarket of $1,016,000 and $133,000 respectively. Also
contributing to the 2006 backlog decrease was $72,000 for indicators and gauges, $135,000 for emission
products and $68,000 for fastening systems products. The lower level of backlog in 2006 is more typical for the
Company than the current year's large backlog.

Reportable Segment Information

In accordance with Financial Accounting Standards No. 131, Disclosures about Segments of an Enterprise and
Related Information, the Company is required to report segment information disclosures based on how
management evaluates operating performance and resource allocations. The Company has determined that it
has two reportable segments: 1) indicators and gauges, and 2) automotive related diagnostic tools and
equipment.

Indicators and Gauges

This segment consists of products manufactured and sold primarily to companies in the aircraft and locomotive
industry. Within the aircraft market, the primary customers are those companies that manufacture or service
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business and pleasure aircraft. Within the locomotive market, indicators and gauges are sold to original
equipment manufacturers, servicers of locomotives, and operators of railroad equipment.

Automotive Diagnostic Togls and Equipment

This segment consists primarily of products designed and manufactured to support the testing or servicing of
automotive systems using electronic means to measure vehicle parameters. These products are sold to OEM's
and to the aftermarket using several brand names and a variety of distribution methods. Included in this segment
are products used for state required testing of vehicle emissions. Also included in this segment are fastening
control products used primarily by large manufacturers to monitor and control the "nut running process” (the
controlled tightening of threaded fasteners) in assembly plants. This equipment provides high quality joint control
and documentation.

Results of Operations

Sales for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2007 decreased to $12,520,061, a decrease of approximately
21% from fiscal 2006 sales of $15,877,719. This decrease in sales was volume-driven and attributable primarily
to lower product sales of approximately $3,180,000. Service sales in fiscal 2007 decreased by approximately
$178,000 and the reduction was volume related, compared to fiscal 2006. Product sales were $11,950,863 in
fiscal 2007 compared to $15,130,872 in fiscal 2006. The decrease in product sales occurred in both the indicator
and gauges segment, and the automotive diagnostic equipment segment. The dollar decreases were
approximately $176,000 and $3,004,000 respectively. Within the automotive diagnostic products,emission
product sales increased approximately $3,177,000 and aftermarket products and OEM products decreased
approximately $1,171,000 and $4,908,000 respectively. Fastening systems products sales declined by
$100,000. Fiscal 2007 benefited from a large state emissions program while fiscal 2006 benefited from two large
orders for proprietary diagnostic products to the dealership network of a major vehicle OEM. Fiscal 2008 product
sales are expected to increase modestly including the balance of the emissions testing program for the State of
California. The reduction in service sales was volume related and attributable to lower repair sales. The current
level of service revenue is expected to decline slightly for fiscal 2008.

Sales for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2006 increased to $15,877,719, an increase of approximately
64% from fiscal 2005 sales of $9,670,694. This increase in sales was volume-driven and attributable primarily to
higher product sales of approximately $6,439,000. Service sales in fiscal 2006 decreased by approximately
$232,000 and the reduction was volume related compared to fiscal 2005. Product sales were $15,130,872 in
fiscal 2006 compared to $8,691,822 in fiscal 2005. The increase in product sales occurred in both the indicator
and gauges segment and the automotive diagnostic equipment segment. The dollar increases were
approximately $123,000 and $6,316,000 respectively. Within the automotive diagnostic products, OEM product
sales and emission product sales increased approximately $7,382,000 and $87,000 respectively offset by a
decline in aftermarket product sales and fastening systems products sales of approximately $930,000 and
$95,000 respectively. Fiscal 2006 benefited from two large orders for proprietary diagnostic products to the
dealership network of a major vehicle OEM with no similar orders for fiscal 2005. The reduction in service sales
was volume related and attributable to lower repair sales.

Cost of products sold in fiscal 2007 was $7,240,071 or 60.6% of net product sales compared to $8,183,500 or
54.1% of net product sales in fiscal 2006. Cost of products sold during fiscal 2005 was $5,197,058 or 59.8% of
net product sales. The increase in the percentage of cost of products sold to product sales between fiscal 2007
and 2006 was due primarily to lower product sales which absorbed less of the fixed costs and to a change in
product mix. The decrease in the percentage of cost of products sold to product sales between fiscal 2006 and
fiscal 2005 was due primarily to higher product sales which absorbed more of the fixed costs and to a change in
product mix. The cost of products sold percentage in fiscal 2008 is expected to decline slightly, although it is not
expected to reach the levels experienced in fiscal 2006.

Cost of services soid in fiscal 2007 was $552,313 or 97.0% of net service sales compared to $602,659 or 80.7%
respectively in fiscal 2008. Cost of services sold during fiscal 2005 was $836,371 or 85.4% of net service sales.
The increase in the cost of services sold as a percentage of net service sales between fiscal 2007 and 2006 was
due primarily to a lower sales volume for chargeable repairs and higher warranty related costs associated with
certain of the automotive diagnostic products. The percentage and dollar decrease in the cost of services sold
between fiscal 2006 and 2005 was due primarily to lower warranty related costs associated with certain of the
automotive diagnostic products and to a lower sales volume of chargeable repairs. The percentage of cost of
services sold relative to net service sales is expected to continue at approximately the current levels in fiscal
2008.
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Product development expenditures in fiscal 2007 were $2,020,312 or 16.9% of product sales compared to
$1,840,182 or 12.2%, respectively, in fiscal 2006. Product development expenditures during fiscal 2005 were
$2,059,401 or 23.7% of product saies. The dollar increase between fiscal 2007 and fiscal 2006 was due
primarily to wage increases of approximately $73,000 due to a staff increase and an increase in research and
experimental material expenses of approximately $79,000. The percentage increase was due primarily to
expense increases and lower product sales during fiscal 2007, The dollar decrease between fiscal 2006 and
fiscal 2005 was due primarily to decreased research and experimental material expenses of approximately
$80,000 and tabor cost of approximately $140,000 due to the staff reductions initiated in fiscal 2005. The wage
reductions imposed from August 2005 through December 2005 were offset by a special bonus paid in late
September 2006. The percentage decrease was due primarily to the increase in product sales during fiscal
2006. The Company anticipates the amount spent on product development will continue at current levels for
fiscal 2008 in order to continue supporting the ongoing need to develop a steady flow of new diagnostic products
for the automotive aftermarket and OEM programs.

Marketing and administrative expenses amounted to $3,630,598 which was 29.0% of net sales in fiscal 2007,
$4,408,798 or 27.8% of net sales in fiscal 2006 and $4,243,632, or 43.9% of net sales in fiscal 2005. The
percentage increase in fiscal 2007 was due to lower total sales for the current fiscal year. Marketing expenses
were approximately $2,051,000 in fiscal year 2007 compared to $2,446,000 a year ago. Within marketing
expenses, decreases were primarily in commissions of $117,000, credit and collection expense of $113,0000,
royalty expense of $81,000, promotional expenses of $38,000, wages of $29,000, outside consulting of $15,000,
advertising of $14,000 and travel expense of $9,000. Administrative expenses were approximately $1,580,000
during the current fiscal year compared to $1,963,000 a year ago. The dollar decrease was due primarily to the
absence of an employee bonus provision during the current year. During fiscal 2006 a bonus provision was
recorded in the amount of approximately $392,000. In addition, outside professional fees and depreciation
declined approximately $11,000 and $6,000, respectively, offset in part by an increase in wages of $19,000. The
Company anticipates that variable marketing expenses will increase modestly in fiscal 2008 due to anticipated
revenue increases. Administrative expenses, are expected to increase modestly due to anticipated additional
public company reporting requirement expenses.

The percentage decrease in fiscal 2006 compared to fiscal 2005 was due to higher total sales in fiscal year
2006. Marketing expenses were approximately $2,446,000 in fiscal year 2006 compared to $2,674,000 in fiscal
2005. Within marketing expenses, decreases were primarily in promotional expenses of $49,000, advertising of
$48,000, travel expense of $57,000, fulfillment expenses of $37,000, credit and collection expense of $29,0000,
freight of $22,000 royalty expense of $12,000 and commissions of $7,000. The decline in marketing expenses
was offset in part by an increase primarily in labor costs of $36,000 as a result of a special bonus paid to
marketing employees in late September 2006 and outside consulting of $19,000. Administrative expenses were
approximately $1,963,000 in fiscal year 2006 compared to $1,571,000 in fiscal 2005. The dollar increase was
due primarily to an employee bonus provision during fiscal 2006, which was included in accrued payroll and
related expenses, of approximately $392,000 compared to ne bonus provision in fiscal year 2005. In addition
wages increased primarily due to a special bonus paid to administrative employees in late September 2006 of
$39,000 and an increase in staff of $16,000, offset in part by a decrease in outside professional fees of $25,000.
Fiscal 2005 atso benefited slightly in the fourth quarter from temporary wage and staff reductions which were
implemented in August 2005.

Interest charges were $49,477 in fiscal 2007 compared with $64,582 in fiscal 2006 and $21,465 in fiscal 2005.
The decrease in interest charges in fiscal 2007 compared to fiscal 2006 was due to lower levels of short-term
borrowings during fiscal 2007. The increase in interest charges in fiscal 2006 compared to fiscal 2005 was due
to increased short-term borrowings to fund the higher sales volume. The Company anticipates interest expense
to decrease slightly in fiscal 2008.

Other income was $346,161 in fiscal 2007 compared with $299,115 in fiscal 2006 and $201,162 in fiscal 2005.
The increase in fiscal 2007 compared to fiscal 2006 was due primarily to an increase in gains on sales of
short-term investments of approximately $49,000 and interest income of $22,000 offset in part by a decrease in
dividend income of $25,000. The increase in fiscal 2006 compared to fiscal 2005 was due primarily to gains on
sales of short-term investments of approximately $111,000 offset in part by a decrease in interest income and
dividend income of approximately $5,800 and $7,300 respectively. In late fiscal 2007, the Company decided to
sell all of its mutual fund investments due to the volatility of the stock market. Currently, excess cash is invested
in overnight commercial paper. The Company anticipates other income to decrease significantly during fiscal
2008.

Income taxes in fiscal 2007 were $8,000 which includes a valuation allowance of $443,000 representing an
effective income tax rate of 1%. The tax rate in fiscal 2007 was lower than the normal tax rate of 37% due to the
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recording of a valuation allowance. Income taxes in fiscal 2006 were $273,500 which represents an effective
income tax rate of 25%. The tax rate in fiscal 2006 was lower than the normal tax rate of 37% due to the
utilization of research and development tax credits. Income taxes in fiscal 2005 were a negative $912,300 which
represents a recovery of income taxes at a 37% effective tax rate. It is anticipated that the effective tax rate in
fiscal 2008 will be similar to fiscal 2006. Management anticipates that future business will generate sufficient
taxable income (approximately $6,015,000) during the carryforward period to realize the deferred tax benefits.
The deferred tax benefits begin to expire in 2015. The valuation allowance was recorded in 2007 as a
conservative measure due to the additional loss and the increased likelihood of tax credits expiring before being
utilized.

The net loss in fiscal 2007 was $649,412, or $.53 per share which was a decrease of $1,453,025 as compared
to the net income of $803,613, or $.66 per share in fiscal 2006. The change in fiscal 2007 versus fiscal 2006 was
due primarily to a lower sales volume. The California emissions program became official and the Company's
product was certified by the State in late fiscal 2007. Although the Company had sufficient orders there was not
sufficient time to produce enough product to attain a profitable fiscal 2007. The net loss in fiscal 2005 was
$1,573,772, or $1.30 per share. The change in fiscal 2006 versus fiscal 2005 was due primarily to a higher sales
volume. Fiscal 2006 benefited from a large order for a proprietary diagnostic product to the dealership network of
a major vehicle OEM with no similar order for fiscal 2005.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Current assets of $10,244,505 at September 30, 2007 were 2.4 times current liabilities and the total of cash and
cash equivalents, short-term investments and receivables was 1.2 times current liabilities. These ratios compare
to 3.4 and 1.9 respectively at the end of fiscal 2006. Total current assets increased by approximately $603,000
from the previous year end due primarily to an increase in cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable and
inventory of approximately $541,000, $241,000 and $822,000 respectively. The increase was offset in part by a
decrease in short-term investments and deferred income taxes of approximately $849,000 and $170,000
respectively. The decrease in short-term investments was due to the sale of all the mutual fund investments late
in the fourth quarter. The increase in accounts receivable was due primarily to a higher sales volume in the
fourth quarter of fiscal 2007 versus fiscal 2006. Inventory increased due to the production of the California
emissions product. The Company began delivering part of the California emissions program referred to
elsewhere herein during the fourth quarter of fiscal 2007 effectively masking any seasonality aspect of the
Company's business and primarily causing the increase in accounts receivable. Most of this order wilt be
completed by the end of the first quarter of fiscal 2008.

Working capital at September 30, 2007 was $5,949,832 as compared to $6,790,066 a year ago. The decrease
of approximately $840,000 was due primarily to an increase in short-term financing and accounts payable of
approximately $600,000 and $1,524,000 respectively offset in part by decreases in accrued payroll and related
expenses and accrued expenses of approximately $390,000 and 157,000 respectively. In addition, short-term
investments and deferred income taxes decreased approximately $849,000 and $170,000 respectively, offset in
part by an increase in cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable and inventory of approximatety $541,000,
$241,000 and $882,000 respectively. The decrease in short-term investments was due to the management's
decision to sell all mutual fund investments during the fourth quarter of fiscal 2007 due to the volatility of the
stock market. The increase in accounts receivable and inventory was due primarily to the delivery of initial units
of the California emissions program order referred to elsewhere herein during the fourth quarter of fiscal 2007.

Internally generated funds in fiscal 2007 were a negative $816,918 and were not adequate to fund the
Company's primary non-operating cash requirements consisting of capital expenditures of $150,142. The
primary reason for the negative cash flow from operations in fiscal 2007 was the net loss of $649,412 and an
increase in accounts receivahle and inventory of $240,672 and $822,478 respectively. Also contributing to the
negative cash flow was a decrease in accrued payroll and related expenses and accrued expenses of $390,195
and $157,325 respectively. The negative cash flow was financed through short-term borrowings with the
Company's lender. Internally generated funds in fiscal 2006 were a negative $1,939,527 and were not adequate
to fund the Company's primary non-operating cash requirements consisting of capital expenditures of $93,773.
The primary reason for the negative cash flow from operations in fiscal 2006 was the increase in accounts
receivable of $3,351,366. The negative cash flow was financed through shori-term borrowings with the
Company's lender. Internally generated funds in fiscal 2005 were a negative $2,336,927 and were not adequate
to fund the Company's primary non-operating cash requirements consisting of capital expenditures of $235,470.
The primary reason for the negative cash flow from operations in fiscal 2005 was the net loss of $1,573,772 and
a $466,100 reduction in accrued payroll and related expenses. The Company expects internally generated funds
in fiscal 2008 from operating activities to be adequate to fund approximately $200,000 of capital expenditures.
Most of the capital expenditures will be made to upgrade information technology and manufacturing equipment.
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The Company has a credit agreement with its financial lender that provides for a secured revolving credit facitity
of $2,500,000 with interest generally equal to two and one half percent per annum plus one month LIBOR. The
agreement is set to expire in February 2008. The agreement is secured by the Company's accounts receivable,
inventory, equipment and general intangibles. The credit agreement contains affirmative covenant requirements,
tested on an annual basis, that require the Company to maintain a tangible net worth of $8,000,000 and a
pre-tax interest coverage ratio of not less than 3.0 to 1.0. In addition, a borrowing base addendum generally
allows for borrowing based on an amount equal to eighty five percent of eligible receivables, plus an amount
equal to the lesser of either forty percent of eligible inventory or $1,000,000. The revolving credit facility is
subject to a review by the Company's lender in 2008. The Company had outstanding borrowings of $1,947,700
under this loan facility at September 30, 2007. The Company violated the pre-tax interest coverage ratio
covenant due to a loss at September 30, 2007 and obtained a waiver from its financial lender. The Company is
in compliance with its other loan covenant. During fiscal 2008 the Company's business may require a short-term
increase in inventory and accounts receivables. Whenever there may be a requirement to increase inventory in
fiscal 2008 there will be a negative but temporary impact on liquidity. The Company believes that internally
generated funds and the revolving line of credit will provide sufficient liquidity to meet ongoing working capital
requirements.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

Hickok has no off-balance sheet arrangements (as defined in Regulation S-B Item 303 paragraph (c){2)) that
have or are reasonably likely to have a material current or future effect on its financial condition, changes in
financial condition, revenues or expenses, results of operations, liquidity, capital expenditures or capital
resources.

Critical Accounting Policies

The Company describes its significant accounting policies in the notes to the consolidated financial statements
included in the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-KSB. However, in response to the SEC's Release No.
FR-60, "Cautionary Advice Regarding Disclosure About Critical Accounting Policies”, issued December 12,
2001, the Company has identified the policies it believes are most critical to an understanding of the Company's
financia! statements. Since application of these accounting policies involves the exercise of judgment and use of
estimates, actual results could differ from those estimates.

Revenue Recognition - Revenue is recognized as manufactured items are shipped to customers, legal title has
passed, and all significant contractual obligations of the Company have been satisfied. Revenue from
development contracts is recorded as agreed upon milestones are achieved.

Inventory Valuation and Reserves - Inventories are valued at the lower of cost or market using the first-in,
first-out (FIFQ) method. The Company's business may require an increase in inventory of component parts,
work-in-process and finished goods in order to meet anticipated delivery schedules of customers. However, we
are responsible for excess and obsolete inventory purchases in excess of inventory needed to meet customer
demand forecasts, as well as inventory purchases generally not covered by supply agreements, or parts that
become obsolete before use in production. If our forecasts change or excess inventory becomes obsolete, the
inventory reserves included in our financial statements may be understated.

Deferred Taxes - Deferred income taxes are provided for temporary differences between financial and tax
reporting in accordance with the provisions of Financial Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 109,
"Accounting for Income Taxes." Significant factors considered by the Company in estimating the probability of
the realization of deferred taxes include expectations of future earnings and taxable income, as well as
application of tax laws in the jurisdictions in which the Company operates.

The Company does not have off-balance sheet arrangements, financing, or other refationships with
unconsolidated entities or persens, also known as "special purpose entities" {SPEs).

Impact of Inflation

In recent years, inflation has had a minimal effect on the Company because of low rates of inflation and the
Company's policy minimizing the acceptance of long-term fixed rate contracts without provisions permitting
adjustment for inflation.
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Market Risk

The Company is exposed to certain market risks from transactions that are entered into during the normal
course of business. The Company has not entered into derivative financial instruments for trading purposes. The
Company's primary market risks are exposure related to interest rate risk and equity market fluctuations. The
Company's only debt subject to interest rate risk is its revolving credit facility. The Company has a balance of
$1,947,700 on its revolving credit facility at September 30, 2007, which is subject to a variable rate of interest
based on the prime commercial rate. As a result, the Company believes that the market risk refating to interest
rate movements is minimal. In addition, the Company maintains investments in a number of mutual funds from
time to time. These funds are subject to normal equity market fluctuations. The Company believes the equity
market fluctuation risk is acceptable because the funds can be sold on demand.

Forward-Looking Statements

The foregoing discussion includes forward-looking statements relating to the business of the Company. These
forward-looking statements, or other statements made by the Company, are made based on management's
expectations and beliefs concerning future events impacting the Company and are subject to uncertainties and
factors (including, but not limited to, those specified below) which are difficult to predict and, in many instances,
are beyond the control of the Company. As a result, actual results of the Company could differ materially from
those expressed in or implied by any such forward-looking statements. These uncertainties and factors include
(a) the Company's dependence upon a limited number of customers, (b) the highly competitive industry in which
the Company operates, which includes several competitors with greater financial resources and larger sales
organizations, (c) the acceptance in the marketplace of new products and/or services developed or under
development by the Company including automotive diagnostic products, fastening systems products and
indicating instrument products, (d) the ability of the Company to further establish distribution and a customer
base in the automotive aftermarket, and (e) the Company's ability to capitalize on market opportunities including
state automotive emissions programs and OEM tool programs.
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ITEM 7. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The following pages contain the Financial Statements and Supplementary Data as specified for Item 7 of Part |
of Form 10-KSB.

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

SHAREHOLDERS AND BOARD OF DIRECTORS
HICKOK INCORPORATED
CLEVELAND, OHIO

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheet of HICKOK INCORPORATED as of September
30, 2007 and 2006, and the related consolidated statements of income, stockholders' equity and comprehensive
income, and cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended September 30, 2007. These
financial statements are the responsibility of the Company's management. Our responsibility is to express an
opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
"United States". Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance that
the financial statements are free from material misstatement, The Company has determined it is not required to
have, nor were we engaged to perform, an audit of its internal control over financial reporting. Our audit included
consideration of internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Company's internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well
as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We helieve that our audits provide a reasonable basis
for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred {o above present fairly, in all material respects, the consoclidated
financial position of Hickok Incorporated as of September 30, 2007 and 2006, and the consolidated results of
their operations and their cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended September 30, 2007 in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

As discussed in Note 6 to the financial statements, the Company was required to adopt SFAS 123(r),
Share-Based Payment, in 2007.

fs/ Meaden & Moore, Lid.

MEADEN & MOORE, Ltd.
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

NOVEMBER 29, 2007
CLEVELAND, OHIO
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
HICKOK INCORPORATED

CURRENT ASSETS:

Cash and cash equivalents

Short-term investments - available for sale
Accounts receivable-less allowance for

SEPTEMBER 30

ASSETS

doubtful accounts of $10,000 ($75,000, 2006)

Inventories-less allowance for obsolete
inventory of $472,000 {$675,000, 20086)

Deferred income taxes
Prepaid expenses

Total Current Assets

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT:
Land

Buildings

Machinery and equipment

Less accumulated depreciation

OTHER ASSETS:

Deferred income taxes-less valuation
allowance of $443,000 ($-0-, 2006)
Deposits

Total Assets

See accompanying summary of accounting poticies and notes to financial statements.
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2007 006
$601,979 $61,363

- 848,698
4,623,055 4,382,383
4,585,552 3,763,074
354,900 524,400
79,019 61,749
10,244,505 9,641,667
233,479 229,089
1,461,892 1,492,161
2,524,296 2,681,618
4,219,667 4,302,868
3,402,339 3,412,447
817,328 890,421
1,690,307 1,573,400
1,750 1,750
1,692,057 1,675,150
$12,753,890 $12,107,238
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LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS® EQUITY

CURRENT LIABILITIES:

Short-term financing

Accounts payable

Accrued payroll and related expenses
Accrued expenses

Accrued taxes other than income
Accrued income taxes

Total Current Liabilities

STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY:

Common shares - par value $1.00

Class A 3,750,000 shares authorized, 782,574 shares
issued (772,174 shares 2006)

Class B 1,000,000 convertible shares authorized,
475,533 shares issued

Accumulated comprehensive income (net of tax)

Contributed capital

Treasury shares - 15,795 (2007 and 2006}
Class A shares and 20,667 (2007 and 2006)
Class B shares

Retained earnings

Total Stockholders' Equity

Total Liabilities and Stockholders' Equity

F3

007 2006
$1,947,700 $1,348,000
1,888,687 364,702
275,858 666,053
110,543 270,959
71,885 68,794

- 133,093
4,294,673 2,851,601
766,779 756,379
454,866 454,866

- 104,869

1,661,627 1,592,942
(661,676) (661,676)
6,237,721 7,008,257
8,459,217 9,255,637
$12,753,890 $12,107,238
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF INCOME
HICKOK INCORPORATED
FOR THE YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30

2007 2006 2005

NET SALES:
Product sales $11,950,863 $15,130,872 $8,691,822
Service sales 569,198 746,847 978,872

Total Net Sales 12,520,061 15,877,719 9,670,694
COSTS AND EXPENSES:
Cost of product sotd 7.240,071 8,183,500 5,197,059
Cost of services sold 552,313 602,659 836,371
Product development 2,020,312 1,840,182 2,059,401
Marketing and administrative

expenses 3,630,598 4,408,798 4,243,632
Interest charges 49,477 64,582 21,465
Other income (346,161) (299,115) {201,162)
Total Costs and Expenses 13,146,610 14,800,606 12,156,766

Income {Loss) before Provision for Income

Taxes (626,549) 1,077,113 (2,486,072)
Provision For (Recovery Of)

Income Taxes:
Current {106,593) 29,000 {25,000)
Deferred 114,593 244,500 (887,300}
8,000 273,500 (912,300}

Income {Loss) before

cumulative effect of change in accounting

principle $(634,549) $803,613
Cumulative effect of change

in accounting for stock based compensation,
net of tax of $8,000 14,863 -

$(1,573,772)

Net Income {Loss) $(649,412) $803.613

$(1,573.772)

Income (Loss) per Common

share before cumulative

effect of change in

accounting principle $(.52) 5.66
Cumulative effect of change

in accounting for stock based compensation,

net of lax of $8,000 {.01) -

$(1.30)

NET INCOME (LOSS) PER COMMON SHARE
- BASIC $(.53) $.66

$(1.30)

Income {Loss) per Common

share assuming dilution:
Income (Loss) per Common

share before cumulative

effect of change in accounting principle $(.52) $.64
Cumulative effect of change

in accounting for stock based compensation,

net of tax of $8,000 (o1 -

$(1.30)

NET INCOME (LOSS} PER
COMMON SHARE - DILUTED ${.53) $.64

$(1.30)

WEIGHTED AVERAGE SHARES OF COMMON
STOCK QUTSTANDING 1,213,984 1,211,245

1,211,629

Ses accompanying summary of accounting policies and notes to financial staterments.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY AND COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

RETAINED
EARNINGS

HICKOK INCORPORATED

FOR THE YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2007, 2006, AND 2005

COMMON STOCK -
$1.00 PAR VALUE

CLASS A CLASS B

CONTRIBUTED ACCUMULATED COMPREHEN-

CAPITAL

Balance at
September
30, 2004 $7,899,541
Purchase and

Retirement

of Class A

shares tendered -

Unrealized

Gain on Investments and
Reclassification

adjustment for gain/loss

included in net earnings

(see ncte 3)(net of tax) -

Dividand of $.10
per Class A and

B shares {121.125)

Net Loss (1.572,772)

$762,588 $454,866

(6.209) -

$1,592,942

SIVE INCOME

$34,863

183,275

TREASURY
SHARES

COMPREHEN-

TOTAL SIVE INCOME

$(639,095) $10,105,705 § -

(22,581)

(28,790) -

183,275 183,275

{121,125) -

(1,573,772) (1.873,772)

Balance at
September

30, 2005 §6,204,644

Unrealized Gain on

Investments and

Reclassification

adjustment for gainvloss

included in net eamings

(see note 3) (net of tax) -

Net income 803,613

$756,379 $454,866

$1,592,942

$218,138

(113,268)

$(661,676)

$8,565,293 $(1.390,497)

(113,269) $(113,269)

803,813 803,613

Balance at September

30, 2006 $7,008,257

Unrealized Gain on

Investments and

Reclassification

adjustment for gainfloss

included in net earnings

(see note 3) (net of tax) -

Sale of Class A
shares under
gption -

Cumulative effect of
change in accounting for
stock based compensation .

Share-based
compensation expense -

Dividend of $.10

per Class A and B shares (121,124)

Nat Loss (649,412)

$756,379 $454,866

10,400 -

51,592,942

32,320

22,863

13,402

3104,869

(104,869)

$(661.676)

$9,255,637 $690,344

(104,869) $(104,869)

42,720 -

22,863 -

13,402 -

(121,124 -

(649,412) (649.412)

Batance at September

30, 2007 $6,237,721

$766,779 $454,866

$1,661,527

$(661,676)

$8,459,217 $(754.281}

See accompanying summary of accounting policies and notes to financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
HICKOK INCORPORATED
FOR THE YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING

ACTIVITIES:

Cash received from customers

Cash paid to suppliers and
employees

Interest paid

Interest received

Income taxes {paid) refunded

Net Cash Provided by {Used in) Operating
Activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:

Capital expenditures

Proceeds on sale of assets
Purchase of short-term investments
Sale of short-term investments

Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Investing
Activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Increase in shori-term financing
Purchase of Class A shares

Sale of Class A shares under option
Dividends paid

Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Financing
Activities
Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash

Equivalents

Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of
Year

Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Year

2007 2006 2005
$12,279,389 $12,526,353 $10,088,121
(13,056,172) (14,412,343) (12,409,036)
(38,328) (57.144) (21,465)
24,693 3,448 10,453
(26,500) 159 (5,000)
(816,918) (1,939,527) (2,336,927)
(150,142) (93,773) (235,470)

- 774 11,941

(900,247) - (500,000}
1,886,627 1,400,000 849,841
836,238 1,307,001 126,312
599,700 548,000 800,000

- - (62,090)

42,720 . -
(121,124) - (121,125)
521,296 548,000 616,785
540,616 (84,526) (1,593,830)
61,363 145,889 1,739,719
$601,979 $61,363 $145,889

See accompanying summary of accounting policies and notes to financial statements.
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RECONCILIATION OF NET INCOME TO NET CASH

PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Net Income (Loss)

ADJUSTMENTS TO RECONCILE NET INCOME TO NET

CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Depreciation

Dividends reinvested

Gain on disposal of investments

(Gain)Loss on disposal of assets

Cumulative effect of change in accounting
principle

Share-based compensation expense

Deferred income taxes

CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES:

Decrease (Increase) in accounts receivable

Decrease (Increase) in inventories

Decrease (Increase) in prepaid expenses

Increase (Decrease) in accounts payable

Increase (Decrease) in accrued payroll and
refated expenses

Increase (Decrease) in other accrued
expenses and accrued taxes other than
income

Increase (Decrease) in accrued income
taxes

Total Adjustments

Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Operating

Activities

F7

2007 2006 2005
$(649,412) $803,613 $(1,573.772)
221,160 237,291 267,180
(45,008) (69,783) (77,085)
(251,543) (202,014) (90,788)
2,075 77 (4,014)
22,863 - -
13,402 - -
106,593 244500  (887,300)
(240,672)  (3,351,366) 417,427
(822,478) (78,445) 175,596
(17,270) (19,605) 4,193
1,523,985 59,545  (111,029)
(390,195) 405,961 (466,100)
(157,325) 1,540 38,765
(133,093) 29,159 (30,000)
(167,506)  (2,743,140)  (763,155)
$(816,918) $(1,939,527) $(2,336,927)
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
HICKOK INCORPORATED
SEPTEMBER 30, 2007, 2006 AND 2005

1. NATURE OF OPERATIONS

Hickok incorporated and its wholly-owned domestic subsidiaries ("Company"} develop and manufacture
products used by companies in the transportation and emissions testing industries. Among the products are
indicators and gauges sold to companies in aircraft and locomotive markets. On a much larger scale, the
Company manufactures diagnostic equipment used by automotive technicians to test the various electronic
systems in automobiles and emissions testing equipment specified by various states for testing vehicle
emissions. Also within the automotive segment, the Company manufactures equipment to control the nut running
process in assembly plants. The Company serves the automotive, locomotive and general aviation markets
predominately in North America. Sales in the Company's principal product classes, as a percent of consolidated
sales, are as follows:

Product Classes 2007 2006 2005
Automotive Test Equipment 85.1% 86.4% 78.2%
Fastening Systems 0.0 9 24
Indicating Instruments 14.9 12.7 19.4
Other Product Classes 0.0 0.0 0.0
Total 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%

Current operating properties consist of a manufacturing plant in Greenwood, Mississippi, and a corporate
headquarters, marketing and product development facility in Cleveland, Ohio.

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Principles of Consolidation :

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Hickek Incorporated and its wholly-owned
domestic subsidiaries. Significant intercompany transactions and balances have been eliminated in the financial
statements.

Concentration of Credit Risk :

The Company sells its products and services primarily to customers in the United States of America and to a
lesser extent overseas. All sales are made in United States of America dollars. The Company extends normal
credit terms to its customers. Customers in the automotive industry comprise 95% of outstanding receivables at
September 30, 2007 (93% in 2006). Sales to two customers approximated $3,683,000 and $3,620,000 (2007),
$7,100,000 and $147,000 (2006), $211,000 and $143,000 {2005}, and accounts receivable to these customers
amounted to approximately $1,552,000 and $3,042,000 (2007}, $3,470,000 and $31,000 (2008).

Use of Estimates in the Preparation of Financial Statements :

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that may affect the reported amounts of certain assets and
liabilities and disclosure of contingencies at the date of the financial statements, and the reported amounts of
revenue and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Revenue Recognition :

The Company records sales as manufactured items are shipped to customers on an FOB shipping point
arrangement, at which time title passes and the earnings process is complete. The customer does not have a
right to return merchandise unless defective or warranty related and there are no formal customer acceptance
provisions. The Company warrants certain products against defects for periods ranging primarily from 12 to 36
months. Charges against income for warranty expense amounted to $60,299 (2007), $37,861 (2006) and
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$133,234 (2005). Sales returns and allowances were immaterial during each of the three years in the period
ending September 30, 2007. An estimate for future warranty claims of $13,764 (2007) and $20,855 (2006) is
included in "Accrued expenses”.

Product Development Costs :

Product development costs, which include engineering production support, are expensed as incurred. Research
and development performed for customers represents no more than 1% of sales in each year. The
arrangements do not include a repayment obligation by the Company.

Cash and Cash Equivalents :

For purposes of the Statement of Cash Flows, the Company considers all highly liquid debt instruments
purchased with a maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents. From time to time the Company
maintains cash balances in excess of the FDIC limits. The cash balance at September 30, 2007 amounted to
$601,979. '

Short-terrm Investments :

Investments were comprised of marketable securities in the form of mutual funds. Marketable securities were
classified as available-for-sale and were recorded at their fair market value. Unrealized gains or losses resulting
from changes in fair value were recorded as a component of comprehensive income (loss). During fiscal 2007 all
short-term investments were sold.

Accounts Receivable :
The Company establishes an allowance for doubtful accounts based upon factors surrounding the credit risk of
specific customers, historical trends and other information.

Inventories :
Inventories are valued at the lower of cost (first-in, first-out) or market and consist of;

2007 006

Raw materials and component parts $2,801,869 $2,392,394
Work-in-process 1,260,911 648,607
Finished products 522772 722,073
$4,585,552 $3,763,074

Property, Plant and Equipment :
Property, plant and equipment are carried at cost. Maintenance and repair costs are expensed as incurred.
Additions and betterments are capitalized. The depreciation policy of the Company is generally as follows:

Class Method Estimated Useful Lives
Buildings Straight-line 10 to 40 years
Machinery and equipment Straight-line 3to 10 years

Tools and dies Straight-line 3 years

Depreciation amounted to $221,160 (2007), $237,291 (20086), and $267,180 (2005).

Valuation of Long-Lived Assels :

Long-lived assets such as property, plant and equipment and software are reviewed for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. If the total of the
expected future undiscounted cash flows is less than the carrying amount of the asset, a loss is recognized for
the difference between the fair value and carrying value of the asset.
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Shipping and Handling Costs :
Shipping and handling costs are classified as cost of product sold.

Advertising Costs :
Advertising costs are expensed as incurred and amounted to $37,519 (2007), $60,327 (2006) and $159,626
{(2005).

income Taxes :
The Company records income taxes under the provisions of Financial Accounting Standards Board Statement
No. 109, "Accounting for Income Taxes."

Reclassifications :
Certain 2006 balances have been reclassified to agree with 2007 presentation.

income per Common Share :
Income per common share information is computed on the weighted average number of shares outstanding
during each period as disclosed in Note 9.

Adoption of New Accounting Standards :

In July 2008, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued Interpretation No. 48, Accounting for Uncertainty
in Income Taxes. The Interpretation prescribes a recognition threshold and measurement attribute for the
financial statement recognition and measurement of a tax position taken or expected to be taken in a tax return.
The Interpretation also provides guidance on derecognition, classification, interest and penalties, accounting in
interim periods, disclosure and transition. The Company will adopt the provisions of Interpretation No. 48
effective October 1, 2007. The Company does not anticipate any material impact to its financial condition or
results of operations due to the adoption of Interpretation No. 48.

In September 20086, the Finangcial Accounting Standards Board issued SFAS No. 157, Fair Value
Measurements. SFAS No. 157 defines fair value, establishes a framework for measuring fair value in generally
accepted accounting principles and expands disclosure about fair value measurements. The Company will adopt
this pronouncement effective October 1, 2008. The Company does not anticipate any material impact to its
financia! condition or results of operations due to the adoption of SFAS No. 157.

In February 2007, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued SFAS No. 159, Fair Value Option for
Financial Assets and Financial Liabitities - Including and Amendment of FASB Statement No. 115. This
statement permits an entity to choose to measure many financial instruments and certain other items at fair
value. The fair value option established by FSAS No. 159 permits entities to choose to measure eligible items at
fair value at specified election dates. Unrealized gains and losses on items for which the fair value option has
been elected are to be recognized in earnings at each subsequent reporting date. The Company will adopt this
pronouncement effective October 1, 2008. The Company does not anticipate any material impact to its financial
condition or results of operations due to the adoption of FSAS No. 159.

In September 2008, the SEC staff issued Staff Accounting Bulletin Topic 1N, Financial Statements - Considering
the Effects of Prior Year Misstatements when Quantifying Misstatements in Current Year Financial Statements
(SAB 108). SAB 108 provides guidance on how prior year misstatements should be evaluated when determining
the materiality of misstatements in the current year financial statements. SAB 108 requires materiality to be
determined by considering the effect of prior year misstatements on both the current year balance sheet and
income statement, with consideration of their carryover and reversing effects. SAB 108 also addresses how to
correct material misstatements. The Company will adopt the provisions of this bulletin effective October 1, 2007.
The Company does not anticipate any material impact to its financial condition or results of operations due to the
adoption of SAB 108.
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3. SHORT-TERM INVESTMENTS AND COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

During fiscal 2007 all short-term investments were sold.

Short-term investments are as follows;

2007 2006
COST MARKET COST MARKET

Mutual funds § - $ - $689,829 $848,698
Less Cost - 689,829
Gross unrealized gains on
short-term investments - 158,869
Deferred income taxes - 54,000
Accumulated comprehensive
income (net of tax) $ - $104,869
Gains (Losses):
Gross unrealized gains $ - $158,869
Gross unrealized losses - -

$ - $158,869
The following table sets forth the computation of comprehensive income.

2007 2006 2005

Net Income (Loss) $(649,412) $803,613 $(1,573,772)
Unrealized gain on investments (net of tax) of $-0- in
2007, $15,758 in 2006 and $101,18% in 2005 - 30,590 196,426
Reclassification adjustment for gain included in net
earnings (net of tax) of $54,000 in 2007, $74,109 in
2006 and $6,775 in 2005 (104,869) (143,859) (13,151)
Comprehensive Income {Loss) $(754,281) $690,344 $(1,390,497)
Gains (Losses):
Gross realized gains $251,543 $202,014 $90,788

Gross realized losses
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4. SHORT-TERM FINANCING

The Company has a secured credit agreement of $2,500,000 with its financial lender. The agreement expires in
February 2008 and provides for a secured revolving credit facility of $2,500,000 with interest generally equal to
two and one half percent per annum plus one month LIBOR. The agreement is secured by the Company's
accounts receivable, inventory, equipment and general intangibles. The credit agreement contains affirmative
covenant requirements, tested on an annual basis, that require the Company to maintain a tangible net worth of
$8,000,000 and a pre-tax interest coverage ratio of not less than 3.0 to 1.0. In addition, a borrowing base
addendum generally allows for borrowing based on an amount equal to eighty five percent of eligible
receivables, plus an amount equal to the lesser of either forty percent of eligible inventory or $1,000,000. The
revolving credit facility is subject to a review by the Company's lender in 2008. The Company had outstanding
borrowings of $1,947,700 under this loan facility at September 30, 2007 and $1,348,000 at September 30,
2006. The Company violated the pre-tax interest coverage ratio covenant due to a loss at September 30, 2007
and obtained a waiver from its financial lender. The Company is in compliance with its other loan covenant.
Selected details of short-term borrowings are as follows:

Woeighted Average

Amount Interest Rate

Balance at September 30, 2007 $1,947,700 7.6%
Average during 2007 $577,000 7.8%
Maximum during 2007 {month end) $1,947,700 7.8%
Balance at September 30, 2006 $1,348,000 7.8%
Average during 2006 $836,000 7.5%
Maximum during 2006 (month end) $1,500,000 7.9%
5. LEASES

Operating :

The Company leases a facility and certain equipment under operating leases expiring through November 2009.

The Company's minimum commitments under operating leases are as follows:

2008 $25,990
2009 16,372
2010 450
2011 -
Total $42,812

Rental expense under these commitments was $39,810 (2007), $33,107 (2006) and $38,735 (2005).

A facility held under a capita! lease has a net book value of $0 at September 30, 2007. Future minimum lease
payments which extend through 2061 are immaterial.

6. STOCK OPTIONS

Under the Company's Key Employees Stock Option Plans (collectively the "Employee Plans") the Compensation
Committee of the Board of Directors has the authority to grant options to Key Employees to purchase up to
47,200 Class A shares, net of granted options. The options are exercisable for up to 10 years. Incentive stock
options are available at an exercise price of not less than market price on the date the option is granted.
However, options available to an individual owning more than 10% of the Company's Class A shares at the time
of grant must be at a price not less than 110% of the market price. Non-qualified stock options may be issued at
such exercise price and on such other terms and conditions as the Compensation Committee may determine.
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No options may be granted at a price less than $2.925. Non-cash compensation expense related to stock option
plans for fiscal years ended September 30, 2007, 2006 and 2005 was $13,402, $0 and $0 respectively. All
options granted under the Employee Plans are exercisable at September 30, 2007.

The Company's Outside Directors Stock Option Plans (collectively the "Directors Plans”) provide for the
automatic grant of options to purchase up to 51,000 shares of Class A common stock over a three year period to
members of the Board of Directors who are not employees of the Company, at the fair market value on the date
of grant. The options are exercisable for up to 10 years. All options granted under the Directors Plans become
fully exercisable on February 22, 2010.

Transactions involving the plans are summarized as follows:

Weighted Weighted Weighted
Average Average Average
Exercise Exercise Exercise
2007 Price 2006 Price 2005 Price
Option Shares
Employee Plans:
Qutstanding October 1, 117,450 $5.60 125,000 $6.25 125,000 $6.25
Granted - - - - - -
Canceled/expired {(13,900) 10.75 (7,550) 16.33 - -
Exercised {10,400) 411 - - - -
QOutstanding September 30,
2007 ($3.13 to $10.50 per
share) 93,150 5.00 117,450 5.60 125,000 6.25
Exercisable September 30, 93,150 5.00 117,450 5.60 125,000 6.25
Director Plans:
Qutstanding October 1, 48,000 $7.45 45,000 $7.15 45,000 $8.44
Granted 6,000 10.50 6,000 5.25 6,000 6.45
Canceled/expired (3,000) 8.50 (3,000) 18.00 (6,000) 16.13
Exercised - - - - - -
Outstanding September 30,
2007 ($3.55 to $12.25 per
share) 51,000 6.63 48,000 6.27 45 000 7.19
Exercisable September 30, 39,000 6.19 36,000 6.36 33,000 7.52
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The following is a summary of the range of exercise prices for stock options outstanding and exercisable under

the Employee Plans and the Directors Plans at September 30, 2007.

QOutstanding Weighted
Stock Weighted Average
Options Average Remaining
Employee Plans Exercisable Exercise Price Life
Range of exercise
Prices:
$3.13-5.00 69,350 $3.74 3.2
$7.13-10.50 23,800 $8.69 8
93,150 $5.00
Weighted Number of Weighted
Qutstanding Weighted Average Stock Average
Stock Average Remaining Options Exercise
Directors Plans Options Exercise Price Life Exercisable Price
Range of exercise
prices:
$3.55-5.25 22,000 $4.21 5.6 18,000 $3.97
$6.45-8.50 20,000 $7.30 5.1 18,000 $7.40
$10.50-12.25 9,000 $11.08 6.5 3,000 $12.25
51,000 $6.63 39,000 $6.19

On October 1, 20086, the Company adopted Statement of Financial Standards SFAS No. 123(r), Share-Based
Payment, under the modified prospective method for its stock options for both employees and non-employee
Directors. The adoption of SFAS No. 123(r) did not have a significant impact on the Company's operations and
are presented as a cumulative effect of change in accounting principle on the Consolidated Statement of
Income. The Caompany previcusly accounted for stock-based compensation plans under the disclosure only
provisions of SFAS 123, which allowed the Company to continue to measure compensation costs for those
plans using the intrinsic value-based method of accounting prescribed by APB Opinion No. 25, "Accounting for
Stock Issued to employees”.

Compensation cost for fixed based awards are measured at the grant date, and the Company uses the
Black-Scholes option pricing model to determine the fair value estimates for recognizing the cost of employee
and director services received in exchange for an award of equity instruments. The Black-Scholes option pricing
model requires the use of subjective assumptions which can materially affect the fair value estimates. Employee
stock options are immediately exercisable while Director's stock options are exercisable over a three year
period. The fair value of stock options grants to Directors is amortized over the three year vesting period. During
fiscal year ended September 30, 2007, $13,402 was expensed as share-based compensation. Total
compensation costs related to nonvested awards not yet recognized is $10,369 (2008), $7,096 (2009) and
$1,598 (2010). The following weighted-average assumptions were used in the option pricing model for 2007: a
risk free interest rate of 6.0%; an expected life of 10 years; an expected dividend yield of 1.9%; and a volatility
factor of .37.

Prior to adopting the provisions of SFAS 123(r), the Company adopted the disclosure only provisions of SFAS
123, which allowed a company to measure compensation costs for those plans using the intrinsic value-based
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method of accounting prescribed by APB Opinion No. 25, Accounting for Stock issued to Employees. The
Company elected to follow APB Opinion No. 25 and related interpretations in accounting for its stock options for
both employees and non-employee Directors. Compensation costs for stock based awards is measured by the
excess, if any, of the fair market value price at the grant date of the underlying stock over the amount the
individual is required to pay for exercising the stock based award. Compensation cost for fixed based awards are
measured at the grant date, and the Company used the Black-Scholes option pricing model to determine the fair
value estimates for disclosure purposes. The Black-Scholes option pricing model requires the use of subjective
assumptions which can materially affect the fair value estimates. The following weighted-average assumptions
were used in the option pricing model for 2006 and 2005 respectively: a risk free interest rate of 6.0% and 4.9%;
an expected life of 8 and 8 years; an expected dividend yield of 0.0% and 0.0%; and a volatility factor of .35 and
41,

Had compensation cost for fixed price stock options granted in 2006 and 2005 been determined using the fair
value method, pro forma net income {loss} and eamnings (loss) per share would have been as follows:

2006 2005

Net Income (Loss) - as reported $803,613 $(1,573,772)
Deduct; Total stock based employee and
Director compensation expense determined
under fair value based method for all awards,
net of related tax effects 12,047 11,747

- pro forma $791,566 $(1,585,519)
Basic Income {Loss) per share - as reported $.66 $(1.30)
Diluted Income (L.oss) per share - as reported $.64 $(1.30)
Basic Income (Loss) per share - pro forma $.65 $(1.31)
Diluted Income (Loss) per share - pro forma $.64 $(1.31)

The effects of applying FAS No. 123 in this pro forma disclosure are not necessarily indicative of future amounts.
7. CAPITAL STOCK, TREASURY STOCK, AND CONTRIBUTED CAPITAL

Unissued shares of Class A common stock (599,016 and 620,316 shares in 2007 and 2006 respectively) are
reserved for the share-for-share conversion rights of the Class B common stock and stock options under the
Employee Plans and the Directors Plans (see note 6). The Class A shares have one vote per share and the
Class B shares have three votes per share, except under certain circumstances such as voting on voluntary
liquidation, sale of substantially all the assets, etc. Dividends up to $.10 per year, noncumulative, must be paid
on Class A shares before any dividends are paid on Class B shares.

During fiscal 2005, the Company purchased shares in conjunction with a tender offer (see note 12).
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8. INCOME TAXES

A reconciliation of the provision (recovery) of income taxes to the statutory Federal income tax rate is as follows:

2007 2006 2005
Income (Loss) Before Provision for Income Taxes $(626,549) $1,077,113 $(2,486,072)
Statutory rate 4% 34% 34%
(213,027) 366,218 (845,264)
Permanent differences {6,700) 9,900 9,800
Research and development credit - net {100,300) {93,400) (103,800}
Expiration of contribution carryforward - - 49,000
Valuation allowance 443,000 - -
Adjustment to accrued income taxes {106,600) - -
Other (8,373) (9,218) (22,036)
$8,000 $273,500 $(912,300)
Deferred tax assets (liabilities) consist of the following:
2007 006
Current:
Inventories $162,900 $245,400
Bad debts 3,400 25,500
Unrealized gains on short-term investments - {54,000)
Accrued liahilities 76,200 226,200
Prepaid expense (23,600) (20,700)
Net operating loss carryforward 136,000 102,000
Total current deferred income taxes 354,900 524,400
Noncurrent:
Depreciation and amortization 209,700 239,900
Research and development and other credit
carryforwards 1,403,200 1,251,300
Net operating loss carryforward 435,100 82,200
Contribution carryforward 65,900 -
Directors stock option plan 12,300 -
Other 7,107 -
2,133,307 1,673,400
Valuation allowance (443,000) -
Total long-term deferred income taxes 1,680,307 1,573,400
Total $2,045,207  $2,097,800
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The Company has available a net operating loss carryforward of approximately $1,680,000 and a contribution
carryforward of approximately $194,000. The net operating loss and research and development credit
carryforwards will begin to expire in 2015. The valuation allowance was recorded in 2007 due to additional
losses and an increased likelihood of tax credits expiring before being utilized.

The Company's ability to realize the entire benefit of its deferred tax assets requires that the Company achieve
certain future earning levels prior to the expiration of its net operating loss and research and development credit
carryforwards. The Company could be required to record a valuation allowance for a portion or all of its deferred
tax assets if market conditions deteriorate and future earnings are below, or projected to be below, its current
estimates. Because of the uncertainties involved with this significant estimate, it is reasonably possible that the
Company's estimate may change in the near term.

9, EARNINGS PER COMMON SHARE

The following table sets forth the computation of basic and diluted earnings per share.

007 006 2005

Basic Income (Loss) Per Share
Income (Loss) available to common stockholders $(649,412) $803,613 $(1,573,772)
Shares denominator 1,213,984 1,211,245 1,211,619
Per share amount $(.53) $.66 $(1.30)
Effect of Dilutive Securities
Average shares outstanding 1,213,984 1,211,245 1,211,629
Stock options - 34,937 -

1,213,984 1,246,182 1,211,629
Diluted Income (Loss) Per Share
Income (Loss) available to common stockholders $(649,412) $803,613 $(1,573,772)
Per share amount $(.53) $.64 $(1.30)

10. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS

The Company has a formula based profit sharing bonus plan for officers and key employees. For fiscal years
ended September 30, 2007 and 2005, the formula produced no bonus distribution. In addition the Board of
Directors approved an additional bonus plan for fiscal year ended September 30, 2006. The bonus distribution
was determined by the Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors. For fiscal year ended September 30,
2006, bonus expense amounted to approximately $575,000,

The Company has a 401(k) Savings and Retirement Plan covering all full-time employees. Company
contributions to the plan, including matching of employee contributions, are at the Company's discretion. For
fiscal years ended September 30, 2007, 2006 and 2005, the Company made no matching contributions to the
plan.

The Company terminated its deferred compensation plan during 2006 which permitted selected management
and highly compensated employees to make tax deferred contributions in the form of salary reductions. For
fiscal years ended September 30, 2006 and 2005, approximately $-0- and $7,500 respectively, were allocated
by the participants to this plan and was included in "Accrued Payroll and Related Expenses.” The funds were
distributed to the plan participants in February 2006. The Company does not provide any other post retirement
benefits to its employees.
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11. SEGMENT AND RELATED INFORMATION

The Company adopted SFAS No. 131, Disclosures about Segments of an Enterprise and Related Information, which
changes the way the Company reports the information about its operating segments.

The Company's four business units have a common management team and infrastructure. The indicators and gauges
unit has different technologies and customers than the other business units. Therefore, the business units have been
aggregated into two reportable segments: 1.) indicators and gauges and 2.) automotive related diagnostic tools and
equipment. The Company's management evaluates segment performance based primarily on operating earnings before
taxes. Non-operating items such as interest income and interest expense are included in general corporate expenses.
Depreciation expense on assets used in manufacturing are considered part of each segment's operating performance.
Depreciation expense on non-manufacturing assets are included in general corporate expenses.

Indicators and Gauges

This segment consists of products manufactured and sold primarity to companies in the aircraft and locomotive industry.
Within the aircraft market, the primary customers are those companies that manufacture or service business and
pleasure aircraft. Within the locomotive market, indicators and gauges are sold to both original equipment manufacturers
and to operators of railroad equipment.

Automotive Diagnostic Tools and Equipment

This segment consists primarily of products designed and manufactured to support the testing or servicing of automotive
systems using electronic means to measure vehicle parameters. These products are sold to OEM's and to the
aftermarket using several brand names and a variety of distribution methods. Included in this segment are products used
for state required testing of vehicle emissions. Also included in this segment are fastening control products used primarily
by large manufacturers to monitor and control the "nut running process” (the controlled tightening of threaded fasteners)
in assembly plants. This equipment provides high quality joint control and decumentation.

Information by industry segment is set forth below:

Years Ended September 30, 007 200 2005
Net Sates

Indicators and Gauges $1,866,095 $2,024,122 $1,875,286
Automotive Diagnostic Tools and Equipment 10,653,966 13,853,597 7,795,408
$12,520,061 $15,877,719 $9,670,694

Income (Loss) Before Provision for Income Taxes
Indicators and Gauges $188,296 $356,615 $(4,735)
Automotive Diagnostic Tools and Equipment 468,238 2,448,525 {1,089,842)
General Corporate Expenses {1,283,083) (1,728,027) {1,391,495)
$(626,549) $1,077,113 $(2,486,072)
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Asset Information :

Years Ended September 30, 2007 200

{dentifiable Assets

Indicators and Gauges $779,534 $898,811
Automotive Diagnostic Tools and Equipment 8,416,846 7,227,331
Corporate 3,557,510 3,981,096

$12,753,890 $12,107,238

Geographical Information :

Included in the consolidated financial statements are the following amounts related to geographic locations:

Years Ended September 30, 007 200 005

Revenue:
United States of America $12,245,924 $14,518,239 $9,348,925
Australia 48,888 33,629 2,115
Canada 125,658 684,225 245,988
Germany 89,358 617,857 12,240
Other foreign countries 10,233 23,769 61,426
$12,520,061 $15,877,719 $9,670,694

All export sales to Australia, Canada, Germany and other foreign countries are made in United States of
America Dollars.

12. TENDER OFFER

On August 11, 2004, the Company filed a Schedule 13E-3 with the Securities and Exchange Commission in
connection with a Tender Offer to purchase for cash all Class A common shares, $1 par value, held by holders
of 99 or fewer shares as of the close of business on August 2, 2004. The purpose of the tender offer was
generally to reduce the number of sharehotders of record to fewer than 300 to allow the Company to terminate
its reporting obligations under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. The Company paid $10 per Class A
common share properly tendered by eligible shareholders. The offer expired on December 15, 2004.

The Board of Directors and management pursued this offer under the belief that the Company derives little
benefit from the status of being a public company. In addition, the costs associated with certain provisions of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act, which are required to be in place in fiscal 2008 and 2009 become even more significant
given our size and the relative benefits we can derive from being public. Although well intended, Sarbanes-Oxley
compliance could mean significant increases for the Company in annual accounting, legal and insurance costs
for remaining public and could significantly affect the size of the Board of Directors and the time management
will be ahle to devote to operating the business.

During the tender offer a number of brokerage firms transferred nominees from "street name” to individual
registered shareholders of Hickok Class A common stock thereby creating additional shareholders of record. As
a result these transfers prevented the outcome sought by the Company. At the close of the tender offer on
December 15, 2004 the Company purchased 6,209 shares from 148 shareholders of record and several
brokerage firms for $62,090 ($33,300 was accrued as of September 30, 2004). Payment was made for shares
tendered on December 17, 2004. Following the completion of the tender offer the number of shareholders of
record of the Company was approximately 400.
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13. QUARTERLY DATA (UNAUDITED)

First Second Third Fourth
Net Sales
2007 $2,191,630 $1,540,0952 $2,817,235 $5,970,244
2006 2,703,224 3,613,401 4,221,159 5,339,935
2005 2,064,891 2,842,081 2,761,122 2,002,600
Gross Profit
2007 757,496 387,274 1,108,334 2,474,573
2006 1,227,951 1,316,035 2,000,299 2,547,275
2005 717,076 1,258,885 1,115,843 545,460
Income {Loss) before
cumulative effect of
change in accounting principle
2007 {375,881) (741,416) 31,321 451,427
2006 104,503 {105,972) 293,975 511,107
2005 (483,758) (255,610) (342,537) (491,8867)
Net Income (Loss)
2007 (1)(390,744) (741,416) 31,321 451,427
2006 104,503 (105,972) 293,975 511,107
2005 {(483,758) {255,610) (342,537) (491,867)
Income (Loss) per Common
Share before cumulative
effect of change in
accounting principle
Basic
2007 (.31) {.61) .02 .38
2006 .09 (.09) .24 42
2005 (.40) (.21) (.28) (.41)
Diluted
2007 (.31) {.61) .02 .38
2006 .08 (.09} .24 41
2005 {.40) (.21 {(-28) (.41)
Net Income (Loss) per
Common Share
Basic
2007 (.32) (.61) .02 .38
2006 .09 (.09) 24 42
2005 (.40) {.21) (.28) {.41)
Diluted
2007 (.32) (.61) .02 .38
2006 .08 {(.09) .24 41
2005 (.40} {.21) (.28) (.41)

{1) The first quarter 2007 includes a $14,863 charge from a change in accounting for stock-based

compensation, net of tax of $8,000.
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SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

Net Sales
Net Income {Loss)
Working Capital
Total Assets
Long-term Debt
Total Stockholders' Equity
Net Income (Loss) Per Share
Dividends Declared
Per Share:
Class A
Class B
Stockholders' Equity
Per Share:
Return on Sales
Return on Assets
Return on Equity

Closing Stock Price

FOR THE YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30

2007

200

h

2005

2004 2003

$ 12520
$ (649
$ 5950
$ 12764
$ 0-
$ 8459
$ (53)
$ 10
$ 10
$ 692
(5.2%)
(5.2%)
(7.3%)
$ 1275

(In Thousands of Dollars, except per share amounts)

$ 15.878
$ 804
$ 679
$ 12107
$ 0-
$ 9256
) .66
$ -0-
$ -0-
$ 764

5.1%

7.2%

9.0%
$  5.90

$
$
$

9,671

{1,574)

10

.10

7.07
(16.3%)
(14.3%)
(16.9%)

4.80

54§ (145
0§ -0
'y M -0-

8.30 $ 775

4.2% (16.1%)
6.0% (15.6%)
6.7% (17.1%)

5.30 $ 410
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ITEM 8. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL
DISCLOSURE

Not Applicable.

ITEM 8A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

As of September 30, 2007, an evaluation was performed, under the supervision and with the participation of the
Company's management, including the Company's Chief Executive Officer along with the Company's Senior
Vice President, Finance and Chief Financial Officer, of the effectiveness of the design and operation of the
Company's disclosure controls and procedures. Based upon that evaluation, the Company's management,
including the Chief Executive Officer along with the Company's Senior Vice President, Finance and Chief
Financial Officer, concluded that the Company's disclosure controls and procedures were effective as of
September 30, 2007 in ensuring that information required to be disclosed by the Company in the reports it files
and submits under the Exchange Act (1)is recorded, processed, summarized and reported, within the time
periods specified in the Commission's rules and forms, and (2} is accumulated and communicated to the
Company's management, including its principal executive and principal financial officer, as appropriate to allow
timely decisions regarding required disclosure. There were no changes in the Company's internal controls over
financial reporting during the fourth fiscal quarter ended September 30, 2007 that have materially affected, or are
reasonably likely to materially affect the Company's internal control over financial reporting.

ITEM 8B. OTHER INFORMATION

Not Applicable.

PART Ill

ITEM 9. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS, PROMOTERS AND CONTROL PERSONS AND
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE: COMPLIANCE WITH SECTION 16(a) OF THE EXCHANGE ACT

The information required by this Item 9 as to the Directors of the Company is incorporated herein by reference to
the information set forth under the caption "Information Concerning Nominees for Directors” in the Company's
definitive Proxy Statement for the Annual Meeting of Shareholders to be held on February 20, 2008, since such
Proxy Statement will be filed with the Securities and Exchange Caommission not later than 120 days after the end
of the Company's fiscal year pursuant to Regulation 14A. Information required by this ltem 9 as to the Executive
Officers of the Company is included in Part | of this Annual Report on Form 10-KSB. Information required by this
Item as to the Audit Committee, the Audit Committee financial expert, the procedures for recommending
nominees to the Board of Directors and compliance with Section 16(a) of the Exchange Act is incorporated
herein by reference to the information set forth under the captions "Information Regarding Meetings and
Committees of the Board of Directors" and "Section 16{a)Beneficial Ownership Compliance" in the Company's
definitive Proxy Statement for the Annual Meeting of Shareholders to be held on February 20, 2008.

The Company has historically operated under informal ethical guidelines, under which the Company's principal
executive, financial, and accounting officers, are held accountable. In accordance with these guidelines, the
Company has always promoted honest, ethical and lawful conduct throughout the organization and has adopted
a written Code of Ethics for the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer. In addition, the Company
adopted and the Board of Directors approved a written Code of Business Conduct for all officers and employeces.
The Company also implemented a system to address the "Whistle Blower" provision of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act
of 2002.

ITEM 10. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The information required by this ltem 10 is incorporated by reference to the information set forth under the
caption "Executive Compensation” in the Company’s definitive Proxy Statement for the Annual Meeting of
Shareholders to be held on February 20, 2008, since such Proxy Statement will be filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission not later than 120 days after the end of the Company's fiscal year pursuant to Regulation
14A.
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ITEM 11. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND
RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

Equity Compensation Plan Information

The following table provides information as of September 30, 2007 with respect to compensation plans
(including individual compensation arrangements) under which Common Stock of the Company is authorized for
issuance under compensation plans previously approved and not previously approved by shareholders of the
Company.

(a) (b) (c)

Plan category Number of securities to be ~ Weighted average exercise Number of securities
issued upon exercise of price of outstanding remaining available for
outstanding options, warrants options, warrants and future issuance under
and rights rights equity compensation

plans (excluding
securities reflected in

column (a))
Equity compensation plans
approved by security
holders 132,150 $5.35 62,200
Equity compensation plans
not approved by security
holders - - -
Total 132,150 62,200

Other information required by this ltem 11 is incorporated by reference to the information set forth under the
captions "Principal Shareholders" and "Share Ownership of Directors and Officers” in the Company's definitive
Proxy Statement for the Annual Meeting of Shareholders to be held on February 20, 2008, since such Proxy
Statement will be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission not later than 120 days after the end of the
Company's fiscal year pursuant to Regulation 14A.

ITEM 12. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS, AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE

The information required by this Item 12 is incorporated by reference to the information set forth under the
caption "Transactions with Management" in the Company's definitive Proxy Statement for the Annual Meeting of
Shareholders to be held on February 20, 2008, since such Proxy Statement wilf be filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission not later than 120 days after the end of the Company's fiscal year pursuant to Regulation
14A.
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ITEM 13. EXHIBITS

(a) (1) FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The following Consolidated Financial Statements of the Registrant and its subsidiaries are included in Part Il
ltem 7.

PAGE
Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm F-1
Consolidated Balance Sheet - As of September 30, 2007 and 2006 F-2
Consclidated Statement of Income - Years Ended September 30, 2007,
2006 and 2005 F-4
Consolidated Statement of Stockholders' Equity and Comprehensive
Income - Years Ended September 30, 2007, 2006 and 2005 F-5
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows - Years Ended September 30, 2007,
2006 and 2005 F-6
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements F-8

(a) (2) FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

The following Consolidated Financial Statement Schedules of the Registrant and its subsidiaries are included in
Item 13 hereof.

SEQUENTIAL PAGE

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm as to Schedules 48
Schedule VIlI-Valuation and Qualifying Accounts 49
Schedule 1X-Short-term Borrowings 50

All other schedules for which provision is made in the applicable accounting regulation of the Securities and
Exchange Commission are not required under the related instructions or are inapplicable, and therefore have
been omitted.

(a) (3) EXHIBITS

Reference is made to the Exhibit Index set forth herein.

ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES

The information required by this ltem 14 is incorporated by reference to the information set forth under the
caption "Independent Public Accountants™ in the Company's definitive Proxy Statement for the Annual Meeting of
Shareholders to be held on February 20, 2008, since such Proxy Statement will be filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission not later than 120 days after the end of the Company's fiscal year pursuant to Regulation
14A.
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SIGNATURES

In accordance with Section 13 or 15(d) of the Exchange Act, the Registrant caused this report to be signed on its
behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

HICKOK INCORPORATED

By: /s/ Robert L. Bauman

Robert L. Bauman
President and Chief Executive Officer
Date: December 26, 2007

In accordance with the Exchange Act, this report has been signed below by the following persons on behalf of
the Registrant and in the capacities indicated and on the 26th day of December, 2007:

SIGNATURE:

fs/ Janet H. Slade
Janet H. Slade

/s/{ Robert L. Bauman

Robert L. Bauman

/s! Gregory M. Zoloty

Gregory M. Zoloty

fs/ T. Harold Hudson
T. Harold Hudson

fsf James T. Martin
James T. Martin

fs/ Michael L. Miller
Michael L. Miller

ts/ Jim N. Moreland
Jim N. Moreland

/s/ Hugh S. Seaholm
Hugh S. Seaholm

TITLE

Chairman

President and Chief Executive Officer

(Principal Executive Officer)

Senior Vice President and Chief Financial
Officer
(Principal Financial and Accounting Officer)

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director
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Exhibit 31.1

RULE 13a-14(a)/15d-14{a) CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Robert L. Bauman, Chief Executive Officer
1, Robert L. Bauman, Chief Executive Officer, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this annua! report on Form 10-KSB of Hickok Incorporated (the "small business issuer");

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state
a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such
statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report,
fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the small
business issuer as of, and for, the pericds presented in this annual report;

4. The small business issuer's other certifying officer and | are responsible for establishing and maintaining
disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) for the
small business issuer and have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to
be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the small business issuer,
including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by cthers within those entities, particularly during
the period in which this annual report is being prepared,;

b) Evaluated the effectiveness of the small business issuer's disclosure controls and procedures and
presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as
of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

c) Disclosed in this report any change in the small business issuer's internal control over financial reporting
that occurred during the small business issuer's most recent fiscal quarter (the small business issuer's fourth
fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially
affect, the small business issuer's internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The small business issuer's other certifying officer and | have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation
of internal control over financial reporting, to the small business issuer's auditors and the audit committee of
the small business issuer's board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over
financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the smafl business issuer's ability to record,
process, summarize and report financial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant
role in the small business issuer's internal control over financial reporting.

By:

/s/ R. L. Bauman

R. L. Bauman
Chief Executive Officer

December 26, 2007
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Exhibit 31.2

RULE 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a) CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
Gregory M. Zoloty, Senior Vice President, Finance and Chief Financial Officer
|, Gregory M. Zoloty, Senior Vice President, Finance and Chief Financial Officer, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-KSB of Hickok Incorporated (the "small business issuer”),

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state
a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such
statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report,
fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the small
business issuer as of, and for, the periods presented in this annual report

4. The small business issuer's other certifying officer and | are responsible for establishing and maintaining
disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e} and 15d-15(e)) for the
small business issuer and have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to
be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information refating to the small business issuer,
including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during
the period in which this annual report is being prepared;

b) Evaluated the effectiveness of the small business issuer's disclosure controls and procedures and
presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as
of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

¢) Disclosed in this report any change in the small business issuer's internal control over financial reporting
that occurred during the small business issuer's most recent fiscal quarter (the small business issuer's fourth
fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially
affect, the small business issuer's internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The small business issuer's other certifying officer and | have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation
of internal control over financial reporting, to the small business issuer's auditors and the audit committee of
the small business issuer's board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

a) Al significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over
financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the small business issuer's ability to record,
process, summarize and report financial information; and

b} Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant
role in the small business issuer’s internal control over financial reporting.

By:

isi G. M. Zoloty

G. M. Zoloty

Senior Vice President, Finance and Chief Financial Officer

December 26, 2007
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Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO

SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of Hickok Incorporated (the "Company™) on Form 10-KSB for the period ending September
30, 2007 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof {the "Report™), |, Robert L. Bauman, Chief
Executive Officer of the Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. section 1350, as adopted pursuant to section 906 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

1. the Report fully complies with the requirements of section 13{a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and

2. the information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of
operations of the Company.

{s/ R. L. Bauman
R. L. Bauman
Chief Executive Officer

December 28, 2007




Exhibit 32.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO

SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of Hickok Incorporated (the "Company™) on Form 10-KSB for the period ending September
30, 2007 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof {the "Report"), I, Gregory M. Zoloty, Chief
Financial Officer of the Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. section 1350, as adopted pursuant to section 906 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

1. the Report fully complies with the requirements of section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, and

2. the information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of
operations of the Company.

sl G. M. Zoloty
G. M. Zoloty
Chief Financial Officer

December 26, 2007
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EXHIBIT NO.:

3(a)

3(b)

10(a)(i)

10¢a)(ii)

10(a)(iii)

10(a)(iv)

10(a){v)

10(a)(vi)

10(b}

10(c)

10(d)

10(e)
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EXHIBIT INDEX

DOCUMENT

Articles of Incorporation and Code of Regulations.*

Amendment to Articles of Incorporation (incorporated herein by
reference to the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the
fiscal year ended September 30, 1995, File No. 0-147).

Promissory Note Modification Agreement, dated September 25,
2006, by and between the Company and Nationa! City Bank
(incorporated herein by reference to the appropriate exhibit to the
Company's Form 8-K as filed with the Commission on September
29, 2006) effective through February 28, 2008.

Commercial Note, dated March 27, 2006, by and between the
Company and National City Bank (incorporated hergin by
reference to the appropriate exhibit to the Company’s Form 8-K as
filed with the Commission on March 31, 2006) effective through
February 28, 2007.

Addendum to Commercial Note, dated March 27, 2006, by and
between the Company and National City Bank {(incorporated
herein by reference to the appropriate exhibit to the Company's
Form 8-K as filed with the Commission on March 31, 2006)
effective through February 28, 2007.

Borrowing Base Addendum to Commercial Note, dated March 27,
2006, by and between the Company and National City Bank
(incorporated herein by reference to the appropriate exhibit to the
Company's Form 8-K as filed with the Commission on March 31,
2006) effective through February 28, 2007.

Business Loan Agreement, dated February 28, 2006, by and
between the Company and Huntington National Bank
(incorporated herein by reference to the appropriate exhibit to the
Company's Form 8-K as filed with the Commission on March 6,
2006} effective through April 30, 2006.

Change in Terms Agreement, dated February 28, 2006, by and
between the Company and Huntington National Bank
{(incorporated herein by reference to the appropriate exhibit to the
Company's Form 8-K as filed with the Commission on March 8,
2006) effective through April 30, 2006.

Hickok Incorporated 1897 QOutside Directors Stock Option Plan
(incorparated herein by reference to the appropriate exhibit to the
Company's Registration Statement on Form 5-8 as filed with the
Commission on September 17, 1998).

Hickok Incorporated 1997 Key Employees Stock Option Plan
(incorporated herein by reference to the appropriate exhibit to the
Company's Registration Statement on Form S-8 as filed with the
Commission on September 17, 1898).

Hickok Incorporated 2000 Qutside Directors Stock Option Plan
(incorporated herein by reference to the appropriate exhibit to the
Company's Registration Statement on Form S-8 as filed with the
Commission on June 6, 2001).

Hickok Incorporated 2000 Key Employees Stock Option Plan
(incorporated herein by reference to the appropriate exhibit to the
Company's Registration Statement on Form $-8 as filed with the
Commission on June 6, 2001).
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Hickok Incorporated 2003 Outside Directors Stack Option Plan
(incorporated herein by reference to the appropriate exhibit to the
Company's Registration Statement on Form S-8 as filed with the
Commission on June 9, 2005).

Computation of Net Income Per Common Share.

Hickok incorporated Financial Code of Ethics for the Chief
Executive Officer and Specified Financial Officers.

Subsidiaries of the Registrant.
Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firrm.

Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a)Certification by the Chief Executive
Officer.

Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14{a)Certification by the Chief Financial
Officer.

Certification by the Chief Executive Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C.
Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Secticn 906 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

Certification by the Chief Financial Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C.
Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

*Reference is made to the Company's basic documents filed as Exhibits 3{a} and 3(b} to the Company's Registration
Statement on Form S-1, dated September 1, 1959, as supplemented by Amendments 1 and 2 thereto, dated respectively
October 15, 1959, and October 19, 1959 (the QOctober 15, 1959 amendment containing an Amendment to Articles of
Incorporation, dated September 29, 1959) and such exhibits are hereby incorporated by reference herein.

The foliowing pages contain the Consolidated Financial Statement Schedules as specified for ltem 7 of Part Il of Form 10-KSB.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM AS TO CONSOLIDATED SCHEDULES

To the Shareholders and Board of Directors

Hickok Incorporated
Cleveland, Chio

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of HICKCOK INCORPORATED (the "Company") as of September 30, 2007
and 2006, and for each of the years in the three-year period ended September 30, 2007, and have issued our report thereon dated
November 29, 2007; such consclidated financial statements and report are included in Part If, Item 7 of this Form 10-KSB. Qur
audits also included the consolidated financial statement schedules ("schedules") of the Company fisted in item 13. These
schedules are the responsibility of the Company's management. Cur responsibility is to express an opinion based on our audits. In
our opinion, such schedules, when considered in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whale, present fairly in all
material respects the information set forth therein.

/s! Meaden & Moore, Ltd.

MEADEN & MOORE, Ltd.
Certified Public Accountants

November 29, 2007
Cleveland, Ohio
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Degeription

Deducted from Asset Accounts:

Reserve

Reserve

Reserve

Reserve

Reserve

Reserve

for

for

for

for

for

for

doubtful accounts

inventory obsolescernce

doubtful accounts

inventory obsclescence

doubtful accounts

inventory obsclescence

SCHEDULE VIII

Balance at
Beginning
of Pericd

5 10,000

§$ 106,000

$ 50,000

$ 425,000

$ 75,000

$ 675,000

{1) Classified as bad debt expense.

HICKOK INCORPORATED

Charged to
Costs and
Expenses

Year Ended September 30,

5 42,467 (1)

$ 389,990

Year Ended September 30,

3 22,482 (1)

$ 337,761

Year Ended September 30,

5 {69,686) {1)

$ 106,259

(2) Recoveries on accounts charged c¢ff in prier years.

{3) Accounts charged off during year as unccllectible.

(4) Inventory charged off during the year as obsolete.

- VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS

Charged to
Other
Accounts

2005
5 54 (2}
§ -

2006

2007

Col. D
Deductions
$ 2,561 (3)
$ 70,990 (4)
4 1,726 (3)
§ 87,761 (4)
5 (4,686) (3)
$ 309,259 (4)

Balance
at End
of Pericd

$ 50,000

$ 425,000

$ 75,000

$ 675,000

$ 10,000

$ 472,000
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HICKOK INCORPORATED

SCHEDULE IX - SHORT-TERM BORROWINGS

Balance at

Category of Aggregate End of
Short-term Borrowings Period
Year
Note Payable to Bank $ 800,000
Year
Note Payable te Bank {1} $1,348,000
Year
Note Payable to Bank {1) 51,947,700

{1) Note payable to bank represents borrowings
February 28, 2008,

Cecl. C Col. D Col. E
Weighted Maximum Amount Average Amount
Average Cutstanding Cutstanding
Interest During the During the

Rate Period Period (2)

Ended September 30, 2005

6.75% $ BO0OOQ,000 5 341,667

Ended September 30, 2006

7.54% $1,550,000 5 835,583

Ended September 30, 2007

7.69% $1,947,700 5 534,575

under a revolving credit facility which expires

{2} The average amount outstanding during the period was computed by dividing the total of

daily outstanding principal balances by 365.

{3) The weighted average interest rate during the period was computed by dividing the actual
intereet by the average short-term debt outstanding.

50

Weighted Average
Interest Rate
During the
Period (3)

6.18%

7.47%

7.78%
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HICKOK
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PRODUCTS FOR AUTOMOTIVE, EMISSIONS TESTING,
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» Automotive Diagnostic Products & Specialty Tools
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* Torque Conirol Systems

* Custom Automotive Products
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